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Investigation No. 337-TA-

Dear Secretary Barton:

Enclosed for filing on behalf of Ultravision Technologies, LLC'(“Com plainant™)
are the following documents in support of Complainant’s requcst that the
Commission commence an investigation under Section 337 of the Tariff Act of
1930, as amended. A request for confidential treatment, of Confidential Exhibit

‘Nos. 50, 51, 52, 53 and certain exhlblts thereto 54,55, 56 and 57J is included with

this letter.
Accordingly, Complainant submits the following documents for filing:

° An original and eight (8) copies of the verified Non-Confidential Complaint
and the Public Interest Statement; one (1) CD of the accompanying Non-
Confidential exhibits, and one (1) CD with Confidential Exhibits Nos. 50 through
57 (19 CFR §§ 210.4(£)(2), 210.8(a)(1)(i)), 210.8(b) and 210.12(a)(1));

° Thirty-nine (39) additional copies of the verified Non-confidential
Complaint, . the Public Interest Statement and thirty-nine (39) CDs of the Non-
Confidential .exhibits for service upon the proposed Respondents (19 CFR §§
210. 8(a)(1)(111) and 210. ll(a))

e I
o ' . Thirty-nine (39) addltlonul copies of Confidential Exhibit{Nos. 50 through
57 on CDs for service upon the proposed Respondents (19 CFR § 210.8(a)(1)(iii));
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* One (1) Non-certified copy! each of U.S. Patent No. 9,349,306 (“the *306 Patent™) and

T U Patent NG, 9,916,782 (“the 782 Patért”) (Collectively; the “Asseried Patonts”),

cited in the Complaint as Exhibits 1 and 3 (19 CF.R. §§ 210.8(2)(1)(iii) -and
210.12(2)(9)(D));

'. e One (1) Non-certified copy? of the Prosecution History for the Asserted Patents
: (Appendices A and C) and three (3) additional copies on separate CDs (210.12(c)(1)
' and 210.12(d));

e Four (4) cbpies on CD of each reference document identified in the prosecution history
of the Asserted Patents (Appendices B and D) (210.12(c)(2)); and,

! * Five (5) additional copies of the Non-confidential Complaint for service upon the
| Embassy of the People’s Republic of China; The British Embassy; Embassy of
Belgium; | Embassy of Japan and Embassy of France in Washington, D.C.
! (210.8(a)(1)(iv))-

A certification is provided below pursuant to 19 CFR §§ 201.6(b) and 210.5(d) requesting
confidential treatment of Confidential Exhibit Nos. 50, 51, 52, 53 and certain exhibits thereto, 54,
55, 56, and 57. The information for which confidential treatment is sought is Complainant’s
proprietary commercial information, which is not otherwise publicly available. Specifically, the
confidential portions of these exhibits disclose information regarding Complainant’s suppliers,
licensing, business plans, market research, sales, and investments and employment in the United
States establishing a domestic industry.

1 The information described above qualifies as confidential business information pursuant
to Commission Rule 201.6 because:

. a. it is not available to the public;
: b. unauthorized disclosure of such information could cause substantial harm to
| Complainant’s competitive position; and

(3 its disclosure could impair the Commission’s ability to obtain information

necessary to perform its statutory function.

L ¢eniﬁed copies of the A.fe,serted Patents have been ordered and will be submitted when obtained.

- 2 ¢eﬂiﬁed copies of the Pfosecution History for the Asserted Patents have been ordered-and will be'submitted when =~ = © © " °

obtained.
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Lam available at your convenience to answer any questions. Thank youfor your attention
T 77 " 1o this'matter. ~ T r :

Sincerely,

hE

Jonathan J. Engler
Counsel for Complainant
Ultravision Technologies, LLC

Enclosures



UNITED STATES INTERNATIONAL TRADE COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D.C.

éERT AIN MODULAR LED Investigation No. 337-TA-___
DISPLAY PANELS

STATEMENT REGARDING THE PUBLIC INTEREST
In support of its Complaint, filed March 27, 2018, and pursuant to 19 C.F.R. § 210.8(b),
domplainant Ultravision Technologies, LLC (“Ultravision”) respectfully submits this Statement
Riegarding the Public Interest. Ultravision seeks exclusion orders and cease and desist orders
aigainst certain modular LED display panels that infringe U.S. Patent No. 9,349,306 (“the ’306
pEatent”) and U.S. Patent No. 9,916,782 (“the *782 patent”) (the “Accused Products™)." Exclusion

oéf such products from the United States will not have an adverse effect on the public health and

welfare in the United§States, competitive conditions in the United States economy, the production

o:f like or directly comipetitive articles in the United States, or United States consumers. As aresult,
|
the Commission’s consideration of the public interest during the remedy phase of the investigation

is sufficient and delegation of this issue to the presiding Administrative Law Judge is unnecessary.

L. MODULAR LED DISPLAY TECHNOLOGY

| Modular LED display panels are digital displays that use light emitting diodes built into

panels, which can be assembled into a large array or installation of varying sizes—a small billboard

!
or sign, a sports team/s scoreboard or digital display, or even large scale LED displays like those

commonly seen in New York City’s Times Square.

Since its founding, innovation has been a key driver of Ultravision’s success. Prior to




suffered from significant problems, including overheating, high failure rates, and large costs
associated with their manufacturing, installation, and operation. For example, previous LED
display pencls were not waterproof, and thus needed to be placed in a sealed chbinet in orderto |
operate outside. These waterproof cabinets required fans and air condltioning systems, which
resulted in very high operating costs. Additionally, previous LED display|panels were not
modular, meaning that each installation required a bespoke design. This resulted in expensive
manufacturing, shipping, and installation. These LED display panels weyei also difficult to
maintain, often requiring expensive maintenance contracts with specialized techniciaris.

Recognizing a need in the industry for a more cost effective and overa;ll improved LED
display solution, William Hall, Ultravision’s founder, and a small team of en gineers at Ultravision, .
completely revolutionized the industry by developing and introducing the UItIraPanel product:
a lightweight modular, waterproof LED display panel in standard sizes that can e;asily be built into
large displays of difference sizes and shapes, requires no waterproof outer cab;inet, and runs on
single-phase electric power. This lightweight, single-phase, modular LED display panel N
dramatically lowered the eustomer’s total cost of installation and total cost of op'ef:ratibn compared '
to older‘treilditgenei ce;biﬁet LED display designs. As a result of these innovatior;s Mzr. Hall been
awarded numerous patents in the field of LED displays. The technolo gy covered| by these patents

O TR R T Py

captures the key features in Ultrav151on s innovative and market-leadmg UltraPanel products.

IL USE IN THE UNITED STATES OF THE ACCUSED PRODUCTS |
' ' POTENTIALLY,SUBJECT TO THE REMEDIAL ORDERS

. The ;Accused Products are modular LED display panels that infringe Ultravision’s
>306 and/or 782 patents. - The Accused; Products are sold for importation into tl%le United States,

imported into the, United States, and/or sold in the United States after importation, at least, by



1

proposed Respondents, who are manufacturers, .private label companies, and resellers. The

piroposed Respondenls’ Accused Products are imported into the United States and sold through |

many channels 1nclud1ng direct-to-consumer sales by the Manufacturlng Respondents sales frorn

the Manufacturing Respondents to the Private Label Respondents, who then relabel and resell the l
: I ! [ ' !

Alccused Products to consumers; and sales from the Manufacturing and Private Label. Respondents |
\ ! P T HEOR- S IR |

to the Distributor Respondents, who then resell the Accused Products to consumers. In addition i
|

to the named Respondents, due to the complexity of this distribution network, the identity of many
! ‘ ‘ ,

m:anu'facturers, private label companies, and distributors is not known to Ultravision. Respondents
use both the Internet and showrooms to sell the Accused Products.

II. THE REQUESTED REMEDIAL ORDERS POSE NO PUBLIC HEALTH,
| SAFETY, OR WELFARE CONCERNS

The issuance of Ultravision’s requested relief, a permanent general or limited exclusion

otder and cease and desist orders, would have no adverse effect on the public health, safety, or
: | ' ;

! The “Manufacturing Respondents” include Shenzhen Absen Optoelectronic Co., Ltd,
Absen Inc., Shenzhen AOTO Electronics Co., Ltd, AOTO Electronics (US) LLC, Barco NV,
B'Iarco, Inc., Cirrus Systems, Inc., digiLED Group Limited, formerly displayLED (HK) Limited,
Elation Lighting, Inc.; d/b/a Elation Professional, Glux Visual Effects Tech (Shenzhen) Co.,
Ledman Optoelectronic Co., Ltd., Shenzhen Liantronics Co. Ltd., Liantronics, LLC, Lighthouse
Technologles (Hong Kong) Limited, Shenzhen Mary Pllotoclcchlmty Co., Ltd., MRLED, Inc.,
Prismaflex International France S.A., Prismaflex USA, Inc., Rocketsign Hong Kong Ltd.,
Tianjin Samsung Electronics Co., Ltd., Samsung Electronics America, Inc., Shanghai Sansi
Electronic Engineering Co., Ltd., Sansi North America, LLC, Unilumin Group Co., Ltd.,
Unilumin LED Technblogy FL LLC, Yaham Optoelectronics Co., Ltd., and Yaham LED U.S.A., |
Inc.

'
i

! The “Private Ilabel Respondents” include Formetco Inc., Leyard Optoelectronic Co.,
Ley'lrd American Corporation, Mitsubishi Electric Corporation, Mitsubishi Electric Power
P1oducts Inc., NanoLumens Inc., Panasonic Corporation, Panasonic Corporation of North
Amer1ca and Vanguard LED D1splays Inc., formerly Aeson LED Display Technologies, Inc.

? The “Distributor Respondents” include ANC Sports Enterprises, LLC, GoVision, LLC,




welfare in the United States. In general, concerns about a proposed remedy having a negative
impact on public health, safety, or welfare have arisen in investigations involving pharmaceuticals,

medrcal equ1pment or green technology pioducts such as hybnd cars or solar _panels. For

e = S PR A ——— e ey —_ - L [ S

example, the Commission has previously concluded that access to necessary medical equipment
is a significant public interest consideration. See Certain Fluidize Supporting Apparatus &
Components Thereof, Inv. No. 337-TA-182/188, USITC Pub. 1667, Comm’n Op. at 23-25 (Oct.
1984). None of those concerns is present here. The Accused Products are modular LED display
panels used for advertising and commercial purposes. Access to Respondents’ infringing modular
LED display panels does not implicate any reasonably conceivable public health, safety, or welfare
concern. Rather, the requested relief supports the public interest because itiwould serve the |
purpose of enforcing U.S. intellectual property rights. See Certain Two-Handle ¢entersetF aucets !
and Escuicheons, & Components Thereof, Inv. No. 337-TA-422, Comm’n Op. at9 (Jun. 19, 2000).

1V. THE REQUESTED RELIEF WILL NOT HARM THE AVAILABILITY

OF LIKE OR DIRECTLY COMPETITIVE ARTICLES THAT COULD
REPLACE THE ACUSED PRODUCTS

Ultravrsron has the capacity to meet the demand for modular LED display, panels protected

by the ’306 patent and the 782 patent with its own UltraPanel products, should Respondents’

infringing products be excluded from the United States. In fact, Ultravision designed, developed, !

engineered assemblea and ihstalled amajority of the LED displays in Times Square Ultravision

also has the capacity I’io 1ncrease product1on of its modula1 LED display panels should demand '

require it to do so. There are no public interest concerns where domestic demand for a

compl'ainant;s pi‘oducts can be met by the complainant, and any legitimate competitors whose
col

products do not 1nfrmge the complamant s intellectual property rights. See fl’llg?f Ink Supplies &

Components Thereof InV No 337-TA 691 Comm n Op on Remedy, the Public Interest &



inkjet cartridges canrot be met by [complainant] and its legitimate competitors, i.e., manufacturers

and retailers of inkjet cartridges who do not infringe the patent claims at issue. Thus, the record does

not support a finding that issuance [oﬂ the remedial orders is plecluded by consideration of the pubhc

111terest fact01s ) Consequently, the avallablllty of hke or directly competitive articles indicates that
the remedial orders requested by Ultravision would not adversely impact competitive conditions in the |

United States, or othefwise be contrary to the public interest.

V THE REQUESTED REMEDIAL ORDER WOULD N OT ADVERSELY
IMPACT CONSUMERS ‘

|
U.S. consumers will have available to them in the: United States' marketplace non- !

ili fringing, authentic rhodular LED display panels—Ultravision’s UltraPanel products—should the
gt

Accused Products be exoluded from the United States. Indeed, U.S. consumers would benefit from |
the unique, domestic iquality, warranty, and technical services Ultravision provides to support its
ciistomers. In light of the availability of commercial alternatives to the Accused Products, the

exclusion of the infringing modular LED display panels will not negatively impact U.S.
| i
consumers. Rather, ,t}f;e requested relief will serve the public interest by enforcing U.S. intellectual -

property rights and protecting the public from unfair competition.
]):ated: March 27, 201/8 Respectfully submitted,

.

V. James Adduci
Jonathan J. Engler :
Asha Allam |
Joshua W. Rodriguez ;
ADDUCI, MASTRIANI & SCHAUMBERG, L.L.P.

! 1133 Connecticut Avenue, N.-W., 12th Floor

| Washington, DC 20036

f B Tel.: (202) 467-6300
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Orlando, Florida 32809

Shenzhen AOTO Electronics Co!, Ltd
9-10/F, United Headquarters Mansion
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Nanshan in Shenzhen

P.R. China

AOTO Electronics (US) LLC
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Cirrus Systems, Inc.
47 Spring Hill Road
Saco, Maine 04072

digiLED (UK) lelted founerly dlsplayLED
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The Pixel Depot
Copse Farm
Moorhurst Lane
Beare Green
Near Dorking
Surrey RHS5 4LJ
United Kingdom

Elation Lighting, Inc.,

d/b/a Elation Professional
6122 S. Eastern Avenue

Los Angeles, California 9004;0

Glux Visual Effects Tech (Shenzhen) Co.
Donghuan 2™ Road

Longhua District i

Shenzhen, Guangdong, Chma

Ledman Optoelectronic Co., Ltd.
Building 8, Block 2 '
Baimang Baiwangxin ,

©  'Industrial Park " 0T
Xili Area ‘ "
Nanshan District, Shenzhen, China

Shenzhen Liantronics Co. Ltd.
Liantronics Building
Antongda Industrial Zone

3" Liuxian Road

68 Block Baoan

Shenzhen, China

Liantronics, LLC

46722 Fremont Boulevard
Fremont, California 94538



Lighthouse Technologies (Hong Kong)
Limited
Unit 608
6/F, Photonics Centre
2 Science Park East Avenue
Hong Kong Science Park™ ™~ ~
New Territories, Hong Kong

v

Shenzhen Mary Photoelectricity Co., Ltd.
No. 4F

Meishengchuanggu Tech Park

10® Longchang Road '

Xin’an Street’

Bao’an Disttict

Shenzhen City, Guangdong Province, China

MRLED Inc.

377 S. Lemon Avenue
Suite E

Walnut, California 91789

Prismaflex International France S.A.
309 Route de Lyon

CS 50001

69610 Haute-Rivoire

France

Prismaflex USA, Inc.
113 West Broad Street
Elizabethtown, North Carolina 28337

Rocketsign Hong Kong Ltd.
RM 1601

The Sun’s Group Center
Gloucester Road 200

Hong Kong

Tianjin Samsung Electronics Co., Ltd.
12 Fourth Avenue

Economic Development Zone
Tanggu, 300457

China

Samsung Electronics America, Inc.
85 Challenger Road
Ridgefield Park, New Jersey 07760 ~ =~~~




Shanghai Sansi Electronic Engineering Co.,
Ltd. ‘

1280 Shuying Road

Shanghai, 201100

o China

Sansi North America, LLC
1500 Broadway

Suite 901

New York, New York 10036

Unilumin Group Co., Ltd.
112 Yongfu Road
Qiaotou Village

Fuyong Town

Baoan District
Shenzhen 518103 China

Unilumin LED Technology L LLC
8350 Parkline Boulevard =
Unit #15

Orlando, Florida 32809

Yaham Optoelectronics Co., Ltd.
#118 Yongfu Road

Qiaotou Community

Fuyong, Baoan District
Shenzhen,

P.R. China 518103

Yaham LED U.S.A., Inc.
4058 Dean Martin Boulevard
Las Vegas, Nevada 89103

Formetco Inec.
2963 Pleasant Hill Road
Duluth, Georgia 30096

Leyard Optoelectronic Co.
No.9 Zhenghongqi West Street
North of Summer Palace '
Haidian District

Beijin

P.R. China



Leyard American Corporation
1692 Barclay Boulevard
Buffalo Grove, Illinois 60089

Mitsubishi Electric Corporation

~ “Tokyo Building =~~~

2-7-3
Marunouchi, Chiyoda
Tokyo, Japan

Mitsubishi Electric Power Products, Inc.

Thorn Hill Industrial Park
530 Keystone Drive

Warrendale, Pennsylvania 15086

NanoLumens Inc.
4900 Avalon Ridge Parkway

Peachtree Corners, Georgia 30071

Panasonic Corporation
1006, Oaza Kadoma
Kadoma City

Osaka, Japan

Panasonic Corporation of North America

Two Riverfront Plaza
828 McCarter Highway =~ _
Newark, New Jersey 07102

Vanguard LED Displays, Inc., formerly
Aeson LED Display Technologies, Inc.

4190 Waring Road
Unit 101
Lakeland, Florida 33811

ANC Sports Enterprises, LLC
2 Manhattanville Road

Suite 402

Purchase, New York 10577

GoVision, LLC
8291 Gateway Drive
Suite #100

Argyle, Texas 76226



RMG Networks Holding Corporation
15301 Dallas Parkway

Suite 500

Addison, Texas 75001
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EXHIBIT & APPENDIX LIST

Non-Confidential Exhibits

Ex. No.

' Description
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Copy of U.S. Patent No. 9,349,306 (Certified copy is on order and will.be
suppliedonceavailable)  ~ T T

2

Copy of U.S. Patent No. 9,349,306 Assignment Record (Certified copy is on
order and will be supplied once available)

3

Copy of U.S. Patent No. 9,916,782 (Certified copy is on order and will be
supplied once available)

Copy of U.S. Patent No. 9,916,782 Assignment Record (Certified copy is on
order and will be supplied once available)

Alibaba webpage results for “modular LED display”

Representative Claim Chart Comparing Absen X Series/Xv Series to the *306
Patent

Representative Claim Chart Comparing AOTO E-Series to the 306 Patent

Representative Claim Chart Comparing Barco C8s to the 306 Patent

Representative Claim Chart Comparing Cirrus BladeX to the *306 Patent

Representative Claim Chart Comparing digiLED OTek to the 306 Patent

|t
ZiBlelelw o (v ~

Representative Claim Chart Comparing Elation EPT6IP to the 306 Patent

12

Representative Claim Chart Comparing Glux ODsn/Leyard CLO to the *306
Patent

13

Representative Claim Chart Comparing Ledman Diasign to the *306 Patent

14

Representative Claim Chart Comparing Liantronics RA3T to the *306 Patent

15

Representative Claim Chart Comparing Lighthouse Rev/Panasonic Rev to
the *306 Patent

16

Representative Claim Chart Comparing MRLED R Series to the *306 Patent

17

Representative Claim Chart Comparing Prismaflex Sealed Module to the 306
Patent |

18

Representative Claim Chart Comparing Rocketsign Mecanus II/Vanguard
Thulium to the *306 Patent

19

Representative Claim Chart Comparing Samsung XR100F to the 306 Patent

20

Representative Claim Chart Comparing Sansi XQ to the *306 Patent

21

Representative Claim Chart Comparing Unilumin UPADIIIOS to the *306 Patent

22

Representative Claim Chart Comparing Yaham D0/Mitsubishi Diamond Vision
to the 3306 Patent

23

Representative Claim Chart Comparing Formetco FTX to the 306 Patent

24

Representative Claim Chart Comparing NanoLumens/Absen XD6 to the *306
Patent

25

Representative Claim Chart Comparing Absen X Series/Xv Series to the *782
Patent :

26

Representative Claim Chart Comparing AOTO E-Series to the *782 Patent

27

Representative Claim Chart Comparing Barco C8s to the ’782 Patent

28

Representative Claim Chart Comparing Cirrus BladeX to the *782 Patent

29

Representative Claim Chart Comparing digiLED OTek to the *782 Patent




Non-Confidential Exhibits

Ex. No.

Description |

30

Representative Claim Chart Comparing Elation EPT6IP to the *782 Patent

5 31 eee|Patent__ . __ ____ __ ____ ________

Representative Claim Chart Comparing Glux ODsn/Leyard CLOito the 782

32

Representative Claim Chart Comparing Ledman D1a31gn to the ’782 Patent

33

Representative Claim Chart Comparing Liantronics RA3T to the "782 Patent

34

Representative Claim Chart Comparing Lighthouse Rev/Panasonlc Rev to
the ’782 Patent

35

Representative Claim Chart Comparing MRLED R Series to the ’782 Patent

36

Representative Claim Chart Comparing Prismaflex Sealed Module to the *782
Patent

37

Representative Claim Chart Comparing Rocketsign Mecanus II/Vanguard
Thulium to the *782 Patent

38

Representative Claim Chart Comparing Samsung XR100F to the 782 Patent

39

Representative Claim Chart Comparing Sansi XQ to the ’782 Patent

40

Representative Claim Chart Comparing Unilumin UPADIIIO5 to the *782 Patent

41

Representative Claim Chart Comparing Yaham D0/Mitsubishi D? to the *782
Patent

42

Representative Claim Chart Comparing Formetco FTX to the ’780 Patent

43

Representative Claim Chart Comparing NanoLumens/Absen XD6 to the *782
Patent

44

Representative Claim Chart Comparing Ultravision UltraPanel to|the *306 Patent

45

Representative Claim Chart Comparing Ultravision UltraPanel to the 782 Patent

46

Representative Brochure from InfoComm 2017 - MRLED 5

47

Representative Brochure from InfoComm 2017 Vanguard

48

Vanguard Thulium Product Webpage

49

Rocketsign Mecarus II Product Webpage

50

E-mail from Liantronics to William Hall Public Version

51

E-mail from MRLED to William Hall Public Version

52

E-mail from Liantronics to William Hall Public Version

33

Declaration of Thomas L. Credelle Public Version

54

Declaration of William Hall Public Version

55

Declaration of Larry Rosolowski Public Version

56

The ’306 Patent Licensee Public Version

57

The >782 Patent Licensee Public Version

vi



Confidential Exhibits .
Ex. No. Description i
50 E-mail from Liantronics to William Hall -
. E-mail from MRLED to William Hall S ‘ B

52 E-mail from Liantronics to William Hall |

53 Declaration of Thomas L. Credelle |

54 Declaration of William Hall '
55 Declaration of Larry Rosolowski -
' 56 The 306 Patent Licensee I
v 57 The 782 Patent Licensee

Appendices

Appendix- | Description,
4 U.S. Patent No. 9,349,306 File Wrapper
U.S. Patent No. 9,349,306 Technical References Cited in Prosecution History
U.S. Patent No. 9,916,782 File Wrapper
U.S. Patent No. 9,916,782 Technical References Cited in Prosecution History

giQ|w| >

e e e e e e e e e e — e e e e e — e e e e e e e e e e e e - e e e — . e = ——



I INTRODUCTION

L This Complaint is filed by Ultravision Technologies, LLC (“Ultravision” or
- “Complainant”), pursuant to Section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930,as amended, 19 U.S.C.§ 1337
(“Section 337”), based on the unlawful offer for sale for importation into the United States, sale
for importation into the United States, importation into the United States, and/or sale within tﬁe
United States after importation of Modular LED Displays (“Accused Products”) by proposed
Respondents: Shenzhen Absen Optoelectronic Co., Ltd, Absen, Inc., Shenzhen AOTO Electronics
Co., Ltd, Barco NV, Barco, Inc., Cirrus Systems, Inc., AOTO Electronics (US) LLC, digiLED
Group Limited, formerly displayLED (HK) Limited, Elation Lighting, Inc., d/b/a Elation
Professional, Glux Visual Effects Tech (Shenzhen) Co., Ledman Optoelec‘:rronic Co., Ltd,,
Shenzhen Liantronics Co. Ltd., Liantronics, LLC, Lighthouse Technologies (Honjg Kong) Limited,
Shenzhen Mary Photoelectricity Co., Ltd., MRLED, Inc., Prismaflex Internaticé)nal France S.A.,
Prismaflex USA, Inc., Rocketsign Hong Kong Ltd., Tiaﬁjin Samsung Electléronics Co., Ltd,,
Samsung Electronics America, Inc., Shanghai Sansi Electronic En'gihééring"cb'.'Ifd.“SéﬁsiNdi‘fh
Amerlca LLC, Umlumm Group Co., Ltd., Unilumin LED Technology FL LLC, Yaham

|
Optoelectromcs Co Ltd and Yaham LED U.S.A., Inc. (the “Manufacturmg Respondents™);

Formetco Inc Leyard Optoelectromc Co., Leyard Amerlcan Corporation, Mltsublshl Electric
1 V o, ] |

Corporatlon M1tsub1sh1 Electric Power Products, Inc NanoLumens Inc., Panasonlc Corporation,
Panasomc Corporatlon of North America, and Vanguard LED Displays, Inc., Aeson LED Display
Technologies; Inc. (the “Private Label Respondents™); and ANC Sports Enterprises, LLC,
GoVisioln, LLC, and RMG Networks Holding Corporation (the “Distributor Respondents”)

(together, “Respondents™).
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2. Respondents’ Accused Products infringe one or more claims of U.S. Patent No.
9,349,3 06 (“the *306 patent,” attached as Ex. 1) and U.S. Patent No. 9,916,782 (“the *782 patent,”

_ attached as Bx. 2) (collectively, “the Asserted Ultravision Patents”), in violation of Section

337()(1)(B).

| 3. As required by Sections 337(a)(1)(A) and (2)(2)-(3), an industry exists or is in the
process of being established in the United States relating to Complainant’s Modular LED Displays
a:nd the Asserted Ultravision Patents, which are practiced by Complainant’g Modular LED
ﬁisplays. Complainant’s Modular LED Displays sold domestically are designed, d?veloped,‘

| | Co ' N e ol
rrilanufactured, tested%, assembled, and supported in the Unitec;{ States.ll T?: qésilgp,‘ d'evellop:,
rrilanufacture, test, assemble, and support Complainant’s Modular LED Displays, Complainant has
n'glade and continues to make significant investment in plant and equipment, has employed and
continues to employ significant labor or capital, and has made and continues to make substantial

e i
ir}westments in the exploitation of the Asserted Ultravision Patents through activities such as
e?nginegr_ing and I“C,SC%_J-‘Ch and development in the United States.

. 4. 'Addi'ti:onally, Complainant is in the process of moving its manufacturing back to
tkllle United States. Complainant’s current and future significant investment in plant and equipment
and significant employment of labor or capital for domestic manufacturing demonstrates that
Cllomplainant is growing the domestic industry for its Modular LED Displays.

5. Because Respondents’ conduct evidences likely circumvention of any limited
e:xclusion orders (“LEO”) that may issue, because there exists a pattern of violation of Section 337,
afnd because it is difficult to identify the source of accused Modular LED Displays, Complainant.

séeks, as relief, a permanent’ general exclusion order (“GEO”) barring from entry all accused




importation. Alternatively, Complainant seeks an LEO barring from entry Modular LED Displays
imported, sold for importation, or sold within the United States after importation by Respondents

_inviolation of Section337. N D

6. Complainant also seeks, as relief, permanent cease and desist: orders (“CDO”)'
against Respondents prohibiting the sale, offer for sale, advertising, marketing, packaging,
distribution, maintenance of inventory, or solicitation of any sale of imported Modular LED
Displays, whether through traditional “brick and mortar” retailers, distributors, the internet, or
other electronic means.

1L THE PARTIES . l
A. The Complainant

7. Complainant Ultravision Technologies, LLC is a corporation incorporated and
existing under laws of the State of Delaware and is registered to do business in Texas.
Ultravision Technologies, LL.C has its principal place of business at 4542 McEvgi/en Road, Dallas,
Texas 75244, I

8. Ultravilsio!n is a leading innovator, designer, manufacturer, apd distributor of
(Izdm}neréial lhlig'.h:-e‘ffl"(:iex%lc':'}lr digital \:/id'eo displays,‘ LED lighting, and' LED d%gital advertising
clli‘spllalys. 'Ultrailisi(')n'haélinvested significant human and financial resources within the United
States in connection with the resealgch, design, development, and testing ofiits LED display
prodﬁcts, which are protecteid by the Asserted Ultravision Patents. Ultravision’s management and
design team has extensive experience in the commercial LED li ghting and LED digital advertising
fn&uéﬁy. I\Jl!trax}isic;rf’s diéplays have been installed throughout the United Statesincluding at New
YBrk’s 'Tilines I‘Square.

career in the commercial lighting and video billboard industry in the United States. Mr. Hall
am PR 3

9._ ) " The Chief E_)ge_cut_ive Ofﬁcer_ o_f_Ul_trgvision, W@llia_m Hall, has a long-standing |



formed Ultravision’s predecessor, Ultravision Holdings, LLC (“Ultravision Holdings”), in 2010
té focus on LED displays and lights for the commercial billboard industry. Ultravision Holdings, |

LLC is a limited | liability company organized under the laws of Texas. Ultravision Technologies,

— N g W TSTN T N ey il ey ey e e _ P2 L _ X

|

A

LLC, as defined above as “Ultravision,” was formed in 2014. Ultravision obtained substantially

all of the assets, incljfuding all of the intellectual property (e.g., patents and trade secrets) and

contract rights, of Ultravision Holdings. Ultravision holds all rights, title, and interest in and to

the Asserted Ultravision Patents. |
! 10.  Ultravision has dedicated significant human and financial resources in the United

States to invent, design, develop, manufacture, assemble, test, and calibrate a number of improved

L;ED displays. Asa result of Ultravision’s investments, it has developed certain valuable know-
how relating to the design, development, manufacture, assembly, and testing of LED displays, and
to the distribution and sale of such LED displays. Furthermore, as discussed below in paragraphs

78-89, Ultravision filed patent applications to protect some aspects of these improved LED

displays. Those filings have resulted in multiple issued United States patents, including the

Pisserted Ultravision Patents.

B. The Piroposed Respondents

11.  On information and belief, the Respondents include original equipment
nllanufacturers, private label re-sellers, and distributors, including agents therefor, that import, sell ¢

for importation, offer ffor sale, and/or sell within the United States after importation Modular LED

D:isplays that infringe{ one or more claims of the Asserted Ultravision Patents.



1. The Manufacturing Respondents

a) Shenzhen Absen Optoelectronic Co,, Ltd.
and Absen, Inc. 5

12,7 7 "On information and belief, Respondent Shenzhén Absen jOpfoElECtFoth’C’o’.’,‘Etd." o
is a limited liability company incorporated under the laws of the People’s Republic of China, with
its principal operating business located at 18-20F Building 3A, Cloud Park, Bantian, Longgang
District, Shenzhen, 518129, P.R. China. On information and belief, Shenzhen Absen
Optoelectronic Co., Ltd. manufactures the Accused Products in China and imports, sells for
importation, offers for sale, and/or sells within the United States after importation the Accused
Products.

13.  On information and belief, Respondent Absen, Inc. is a company incorporated
under the laws of Delaware, with its principal operating business located at 7120 Lake Ellenor
Drive, Orlando, Florida 32809. On information and belief, Absen, Inc. iimports, sells for .
importation, and/or markets, offers for sale, sells, and distributes within the United States after
importation the Accused P’fbdﬁéts manufactured by Shenzhen Absen Optb'el'eétrioni'c Co., Ltd.

14. On information and belief, Shenzhen Absen Optoelectronic Co.; Ltd. and Absen, |
Inc. are related entities; these entities are therefore collectively referred to herein as “Absen.”

15. As fﬁrther deltailed below, Absen manufactures, imports into the United States, sells
tl"or importation, and/or markets, sells and distributes within the United States after importation one
or more Accused Products that infringe; direcﬁy or indirectly, one or more claims of the Asserted

a

Ultravision Patents. In addition, Absen uses, and actively, knowingly, and intentionally directs

and/or induces others, and specifically intends for those others, to use the Accused Products in a

1

manner that directly infringes the Asserted Ultravision Patents. Absen is not licensed to any of



b) Shenzhen AOTO Electronics Co., Ltd. and
AQOTO Electronics (US) LLC

[

16. On information and belief, Respondent Shenzhen AOTO Electronics Co., Ltd. isa

limited liability company incorporated under the laws of t

e People’s Republic of China, with its =~~~
p;rincipal operating business located at 9-10/F, United Headquairters Mansio‘q, NO.63 Xuefu Road,
: ‘ : TRRS
Hi-Tech Zone, Nanshan in Shenzhen, P.R. China. On inform?’cion and belief, Shenzhen AOTO
Electronics Co., Ltd. manufactures the Accused Products -in China and imports, sells for
il;lportation, offers for sale, and/or sells within the United States after importation the Accus‘ed
Péroducts.
Il 17.  On information and belief, Respondent AOTO Electronics (US) LLC is a limited

liability company organized under the laws of California, with its principal operating business

lécated at 12 Hughes, #D-100, Irvine, California 92618. On information and belief, AOTO

Electronics (US) LLC imports, sells for importation, and/or markets, offers for sale, sells, and
diistributes within the United States after importation the Accused Products manufactured by
's,zhenzhgn AOTO Electronics Co., Ltd.

I 18. On information and belief, Shenzhen AOTO Electronics Co., Ltd. and Shenzhen
A;OTO Electronics Co., Ltd. are related entities; these entities are therefore collectively referred to

|

|

herein as “A0TO.” |
. 19. As fuﬁher detailed below AOTO manufactures, imports into the United States, sells ‘ ‘

! |

fc;)r importation, and/or markets, sells, and distributes within the United States after importation |
ollne or more Accused Products that infringe, directly or indirectly, one or more claims of the

Asserted Ultravision Patents. In addition, AOTO uses, and actively, knowingly, and intentionally

directs and/or induces others, and specifically intends for those others, to use the Accused Products



in a manner that directly infringes the Asserted Ultravision Patents. AOTO is not licensed to any
of the Asserted Ultravision Patents. Respondent AOTO’s infringement is knowing and intentional.

s R & S SR Esanmeaam sase=sa.C) . _BarcoNV.and Barco,Inc. - oo oo b _

20.  Oninformation and belief, Respondent Barco NV is a company incorporated under
the laws of Belgium, with its principal operating business located at Barco One Campus
Beneluxpark 21, BE-8500 Kortrijk, Belgium. On information and belief, Barco NV manufactureé !
the Accused Products in Belgium and imports, sells for importation, offers forésale, and/or sells
within the United States after importation the Accused Products.

21.  Oninformation and belief, Respondent Barco, Inc. is a company incorporated under
i

the laws of Delaware, with its principal operating business located at 3059 P]i'emiere Parkway,
Duluth, Georgia 30097. On information and belief, Barco, Inc. imports, sellé for importation,
and/or markets, offers for sale, sells, and distributes within the United States aﬂér importation the
Accused Products manufactured by Barco NV.

-22. _ On information and belief, Barco NV and Barco, Inc. are related entities; these
i . P LI - S . i . i
entities are therefore collectively referred to herein as “Barco.” i

23.  As further detailed below Barco manufactufés, 'imports into the U‘nited States, sells

for importation, and/or markets, sells, and distributes within the United States after importation

. T Ci :‘ \ !

one or more Accused Products that infringe, directly or indirectly, one or more claims of the

Asserted Ultravision Patents. In addition, Barco uses, and actively, knowingly,and intentionally
TR P T ‘ 4

directs and/or induces others, and specifically intends for those others, to use the Accused Products

in a manner that directIy infringes the Asserted Ultravision Patents. Barco is not licensed to any

of the Asserted Ultravision Patents. Respondent Barco’s infringement is knowing and intentional.



d) Cirrus Systems, Inc.

24,  On infonnation and belief, Respondent Cirrus Systems, Inc. (“Cirrus”) is a

v cbm_pany incorporated under the laws of Delaware, with its principal operating business located at

47 Spring Hill Rd., Saco, Maine 04072. As further detailed below Cirrus manufactures, imports

into the United States, sells for importation, and/or markets, offers for sale, sells, and distributes
|

I 1? . . b Mo gt o VG
within the United States after importation one or more Accused Products that infringe, directly or

indirectly, one or more claims of the Asserted Ultravision Patents. In addition:LCi‘lrr‘us uses, ‘and

attively, knowingly, and intentionally directs and/or induces others, and si)éciﬁcéfly;ihfeﬁd‘s‘fof
g

t}}ose others, to use the Accused Products.in a manner that directly infringes ‘the' Asserted
l .
Ultravision Patents. Cirrus is not licensed to any of the Asserted Ultravision Patents. Responélent

Cirrus’s infringement is knowing and intentional.

_ : e) digiLED (UK) Limited, formerly
' ; displayLED (HK) Limited

) 25. On information and belief, Respondent digiLED (UK) Limited, formerly
|

d:isplayLED (HK) Lirnited (“digiLED™), is a company incorporated under the laws of the United
Kingdom, with its prinicipal operating business located at The Pixel Depot, Copse Farm, Moorhurst
Lane, Beare Green, ﬁear Dorking, Surrey RH5 4LJ, United Kingdom. As further detailed below

digiLED manufacturés, imports into the United States, sells for importation, and/or markets, offers
{

! !
for sale, sells, and distributes within the United States after importation one or more Accused
Products that infringe, directly or indirectly, one or more claims of the Asserted Ultravision

Pzatents. In addition, digiLED uses, and actively, knowingly, and intentionally directs and/or

induces others, and specifically intends for those others, to use the Accused Products in a manner

that directly infringes the Asserted Ultravision Patents. digiLED is not licensed to any of the

" “Asserted Ultravision Pafents.” Respondent digiLED’s infringement is knowing and intentional: =~~~

8



f) Elation Lighting, Inc.
26. On information and belief, Respondent Elation Lighting, Ir:10. d/b/a Elation
. Professional (“Elation”) is a company incorporated under the laws of Nevada, with its principal _
operating business located at 6122 S. Eastern Avenue, Los Angeles, California 9;0040. As further
detailed below Elation manufactures, imports into the United States, sells for importation, and/or
markets, offers for sale, sells, and distributes within the United States after importation one or
more Accused Products that infringe, directly or indirectly, one or more claim:s of the Asserted
Ultrgyision Patents. In addition, Elation uses, and actively, knowiqgly, and intentionally directs
and/or induces others, and specifically intends for those others, to use the Accu:sed Products in a
manner that directly infringes the Asserted Ultravision Patents. Elation is not licensed to any of
the Asserted Ultravision Patents. Respondent Elation’s infringement is knowing and intentional.
2) Glux Visual Effects Tech (Sheniheﬁ) Co. '
27.  On information and belief, Respondent Glux Visual Effects Tec;h (Shenzhen) Co.
(“Glux”) is a company incorporated under the laws of the People’s Republic of_(EJhi_r_le_t and wholly-
owned subsidiary of Beijing Yicai Glux Tech Co., Ltd., with its principal oiaerating business
Io.cated at Glux Industrial Park, Donghuan 2™ Road, Longhua District, Shenz:hen, Guangdong,
éhiﬁa. |A‘s !fﬁrf};ef!detailéd below Glux manufactures, imports into the Unitegl States, sells for

v L. .i w‘i,‘ l\. ! i . p o . . PRTA. ‘.
importation, and/or markets, offers for sale, sells, and distributes within the United States after

{’!E;" ' 1

impoftation one or more Accused Products that infrihge, directly or indirectly, oﬁe or more claims
of the Asserted Ultravision Patents. In addition, Glux uses, and actively,ii knowingly, and

F T T Y N S ] "o, I i ;
intentionally directs and/or induces others, and specifically intends for those others, to use the
Pt

f

Accused Products in a manner that directly infringes the Asserted Ultravision Patents. Glux is not
' _libeﬁsed té_a_ny of the Asserted Ultravision P?lt_eljlt_s.ll Respondent Glux’s infringement is knowing |

and intentional.



h) Ledman Optoelectronic Co., Ltd.

28.  On information and belief, Respondent Ledman Optoelectronic Co., Ltd.

(YLedman™) is a company incorporated under the laws of the People’s Republic of C_h_ir_la,_ Yvith itg

pfrincipal operating bﬁ“siness located at Bﬁilding 8, Block 2, Baimang Baiwahgxin, Industrial Park,

Xili Area, Nanshan District, Shenzhen, China. As further detailed below Ledrman manfffactdféSL

imports into the United States, sells for importation, and/or markets, offers for sale, sells, and
:- . g o i . e . ILm AR
distributes within the [United States after importation one or more Accused Products that infringe,

directly or indirectly, one or more claims of the Asserted Ultravision Patents. In addition, Ledman

u:ses, and actively, kflowingly, and intentionally directs and/or induces others, an'd'spec'iﬁcally

' ) i ) ‘.
intends for those others, to use the Accused Products in a manner that directly infringes the

Asserted Ultravision Patents. Ledman is not licensed to any of the Asserted Ultravision Patents.

Respondent Ledman’s infringement is knowing and intentional.

i) Shenzhen Liantronics Co. Ltd. and
x Liantronics, LL.C
icorporated under the laws of the People’s Republic of China, with a principal operating business

lc;cated at Liantronics Building, Antongda Industrial Zone, 3™ Liuxian Road, 68 Block Baoan,

Shcnzhen, China. On information and belief, Shenzhen Liantronics Co. Ltd. manufactures the

i

Accused Products in China and imports, sells for importation, offers for sale, and/or sells within

the United States aftet importation the Accused Products.

30.  On information and belief, Respondent Liantronics, LLC is a limited liability
company organized under the laws of California, with its principal operating business located at

46722 Fremont Boulevard, Fremont, California 94538. On information and belief, Liantronics,
|

" 29, “Oninformation and belief, Respondent Shenzhen Liantronics Co. Lid. is a company”




United States after importation the Accused Products manufactured by Shenzhen Liantronics Co.
Ltd.

- -~ 31._ ___Oninformation and belief, Shenzhen Liantronics Co. Ltd. a
related entities; these entities are therefore collectively referred to herein as “Liantronics.”

32.  As further detailed below Liantronics manufactures, imports into the United States,
sells for importation, and/or markets, sells and distributes within the United States after
importation one or more Accused Products that infringe, directly or indirectly, one or more claims
of the Asserted Ultravision Patents. In addition, Liantronics uses, and activelx, knowingly, and
intentionally directs and/or induces others, and specifically intends for those others, to use the
Accused Products in a manner that directly infringes the Asserted Ultrévision Pa’éents. Liantronics
is not licensed to any of the Asserted Ultravision Patents. Respondent Liantronics’s infringement

is knowing and intentional.

) Lighthouse Technologies (Hong Kong)
Limited

33, On informa}tioi; and belief, Respondent Lighthouse Technologies Lirﬁited
(“Lighthouse”) is a private company limited by shares incorporated under the IaWs of Hong Kong,

with its principal ‘o,pcrati‘lr%g business located at Unit 608, 6/F, Photonics Centre, 2 Science Park
!

East Avenue, Hong Kong Science Park in New Territories, Hong Kong. As further detailed below,

Lighthouse manufactures, imports into the United States, sells for importatiom, and/or markets,

offers for sale, sells, and distributes within the United States after importation oneor more Accused

Products, that inftinge, directly or indirectly, one or more claims of the Asserted Ultravision

Patents. In addition, Lighthouse uses, and actively, knowingly, and intentionally directs and/or

induces others, and specifically intends for those others, to use the Accused Products in a manner



fmemeeemeioo—eo ..o K)--.-Shenzhen Mary Photoelectricity Co., Ltd.- - —— - - - .| .

that directly infringes the Asserted Ultravision Patents. Lighthouse is not licensed to any of the

Asserted Ultravision Patents. Respondent Lighthouse’s infringement is knowing and intehtional.

and MRLED Inc. |

‘ 34.  On information and belief, Respondent ShenzheniMary Photoelectricity Co., Ltd.
1s a company incorpérated under the laws of the People’s Republic of China and subs‘idja1'y of
F?ujian FURI Electronics Co., Ltd., with its principal operating business located at No. 4F,
Meishengchuanggu 'fech Park, 10% Longchéng Road, Xin’an Street, Bao’ian District, Shenzhen
Céity, Guangdong Province, China. On information and belief, Shenzhen Mary :Photoelectricit}ll
do., Ltd. manufactures the Accused Products in China and imports, sells for importation, offers
fér sale, and/or sells within the United States after importation the Accused Products.

35.  On infprrﬁation and belief, Respondent MRLED Inc. is a limited liability company
o:rganized under the laws of California, with its principal operating business located at 377 S.
Liemon Avenue, Suit:e E, Walnut, California 91789. On information and belief, MRLED Inc.
iI:anrts, sells for importation, arj1d/or, markets, offers for sale, sells, and distributes vs;ithin the
United States after ;importation the Accused Products manufactured by Shenzhen Mary
Pilotoelectricity Co., Ltd.

! 36.  On information and belief, Shenzhen Mary Photoelectricity Co., Ltd. and MRLED
Ilic. are related entities; these entities are therefore collectively referred to herein as “MRLED.”

37. As further detailed below MRLED manufactures, imports into the United States,
se‘;lls for importation, - and/or markets, sells, and distributes within the United States after
importation one or more Accused Products that infringe, directly or indirectly, one or more claims
of the Asserted Ultravision Patents. In addition, MRLED uses, and actively, knowingly, and

intentionally directs and/or induces others, and specifically intends for those others, to use the




Accused Products in a manner that d‘,iirectly infringes the Asserted Ultravision Patents. MRLED is

not licensed to any of the Asserted Ultravision Patents. Respondent MRLED’s infringement is

-knowing and-intentional. — - - — - ________________. feeme _n

D Prismaflex International France S.A. and
Prismaflex USA, Inc.
38. : On information and belief, Respondent Prismaflex International France S.A. is a

corﬁpany incorporate'chql}tc_ier -the~1aws of FranCe,,Wlth 1ts principgl operating business located at
309 route de Lyon, CS 50001, 69610 Haute-Rivoirc;,, Fraﬁbe. it

39.  On information and belief, Rc;,spondent Prismaflex USA, In(I:. 1s a company
incorporated under the laws of North Carolina, with its principal operating business located at 113
West Broad Street, Elizabethtown, North Carolina 28337.

40.  On information and belief, Prismaflex International France SA and Prismaflex
USA, Inc. are related -entities; these entities are therefore collecﬁvely referred to herein as
“Prismaflex.” |

41. 7 Asfurther dctalled below,Prlsmaﬂm;I;m;:lfactul_es, 1m portsmto the Umted étateé,
sells for importél.tior;, and/or markels, offers for sale, sells, and distr“ibutes withi'r;;thé quted Stétes
after importation one Ql;_f rﬁore Accli‘;ed Products that infringe, directly or indirejctly, oﬁe or more
claims of the Asserted Ultravision Patents. In additioﬁ, Prismaflex uses, and actively, knowingly;

and intentionally directs and/or induces others, and specifically intends for those others, to use the

Accused Products in a manner that directly infringes the Asserted Ultravision Patents. Prismaflex

| " ¢S

is not licensed to any' of the Asserted Ultravision Patents. Respondent Prismaflex’s infringement

is knowing arid intentional.



m)  Rocketsign Hong Kong Ltd.

42.  On information and belief, Respondent Rocketsign Hong Kéng Ltd.

(‘E‘Rocketsign”) is a company incorporated under the laws of Hong Kong, with its principal

oEperati—né l-al‘ls'in-e.ssnlobated at RM 1_6_0'1, ."1;};6 Sun’s Group Cem'f;:;, -él.c;uuc-estér Road 200, H;Jr-lg_ _
Iéiong. As further detailed below Rocketsign manufactures, imports into the United 'States, sells
fé)r importation, and/ér markets, offers for sale, sells, and distribuites within the United States
a-:fter importation One;or more Accused Products that infringe, dirébtly or indirectly, one or more
ciaims of the Asserted Ultravision Patents. In addition, Rocketsign uses, and actively,
kfnowingly, and intentionally difeéts ahd/or ‘induces others, 'and‘speciﬁcally intends for those .
o:thers, to use the Accused Products in a manner that directly infringes the Asserted Ultravision
P:atents. Rocketsign is not licensed to any of the Asserted Ultravision Patents. Respondent

Rocketsign’s infringement is knowing and intentional.

n) Tianjin Samsung Electronics Co., Ltd. and
P Samsung Electronics America, Inc.

_ 43. -On _i1_1formation and belief; Respondent Tianjin-Samsung Eleetronics €o:; Ltd: is a
cémpany incorporated under the laws of the People’s Republic of China, with its principal
oIEJerating business located at 12 Fourth Avenue, Economic Development Zone, Tanggu, 300457,
Cl"hina. On informatioﬁn and belief, Tianjin Samsung Electronics Co., Ltd. manufactures the
Afccused Products in China and South Korea and imports, sells for importation, offers for sale,
arid/or sells within the United States after importation the Accused Products.

44.  Oninformation and belief, Respondent Samsung Electronics America, Inc. is a

cémpany incorporated under the laws of New York, with its principal operating business located

at 85 Challenger Road, Ridgefield Park, New Jersey 07760. On information and belief, Samsung

Electronics America, Inc. imports, sells for importation, and/or.markets, offers for sale, sells;and- -~ . - - .



distributes within the United States after importation the Accused Products manufactured by

Tianjin Samsung Electronics Co., Ltd.

- - —--45._._ On.information and belief, Tianjin Samsung Electronics.Co., Ltd?. and Samsung_ . _ _ _ B
Electronics America, Inc. are related entities; these entities are therefore collecti:vely referred to
herein as “Samsung.”

46. As further detailed below, Samsung manufactures, imports into the United States,
sells for importation, and/or markets, offers for sale, sells, and distributes within the United
States after importation one or more Accused Products that infringe, directly or indirectly, one or
more claims of the Asserted Ultravision Patents. In addition, Samsung uses, anc;l actively,
knowingly, and intentionally directs and/or induces others, and specifically intends for those
others, to use the Accused Products in a manner that directly infringes the Asser;ted Ultravision
Patents. Samsung is not licensed to any of the Asserted Ultravision Patents. Rebpondent
Samsung’s infringement is knowing and intentional.

e g 0)--- .- Shanghai Sansi.-Technology.Co., Ltd and - ... . . .
U ‘ Sansi North America, LLC |

47.  On,information and belief, Respondent Shanghai Sansi Technol.bgy Co., Ltdisa
public company incorporated under the laws of the People’s Republic of China, !with its principal
operating business located at No‘. 1280 Shuying Road, Shanghai, 201100 PR China. On
inforlr;)ation and belief, Shanghai Sansi Technology Co., Ltd. manufactures the Accused Products
in China and imports, sells for importation, offers for sale, and/or sells within the United States
after importation the Accused Products.

. 48, Oninformation and belief, Respondent Sansi North America, LLC is a limited

liability company organized under the laws of New York, with its principal operéting business

located at 15 00 Broadway, Su1te 901, New York, New York 10036 On 1nformat10n and belief,

15
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Sfansi North America, LLC imports, sells for importation, and/or markets, offers for sale, sells,

. f | A : LR o D
and distributes within the United States after importation the Accused Products manufactired by

_ Shanghai Sansi Technology Co., Ltd._ __ __

49.  On information and belief, Shanghai Sansi Technblogy Co., Ltd. and Sansi North
A:merica, LLC are related entities; these entities are therefore cc'ill‘ectively3 referred to Hetein as
“;Sansi.” - ' | '

' 50, As further detailed below, Sansi manufactures, imports into the United States, sells

for importation, and/or markets, sells, and distributes within the' United States after importation
ohe or more Accused Products that infringe, directly or indirectly, one or mofe claims of the

Asserted Ultravision Patents. In addition, Sansi uses, and activéiy, knowiﬁgly, aﬁd'ihténtiéﬁglly
|
directs and/or induces others, and specifically intends for those others, to use the Accused Products

in a manner that direétly infringes the Asserted Ultravision Patents. Sansi is not licensed to any

of the Asserted Ultravision Patents. Respondent Sansi’s infringement is knowing and intentional. |

-p)- - -Unilumin Group. Co., Ltd. and Unilumin J
LED Technology FL LLC _ !

|
51.  On information and belief, Respondent Unilumin Group Co., Ltd. is a public -'
c;)mpany incorporatéd under the laws of the People’s Republic of China, with its principal |
05perating business lo;cated at 112 Yongfu Rd., Qiaotou Village, Fuyong Town, Baoan District in l!
Shenzhen, P.R. China. On information and belief, Unilumin Group Co., Ltd. manufactures the 5

P \ |
Accused Products in ‘China and imports, sells for importation, offers for sale, and/or sells within ‘
|

|

tl;u-: United States after importation the Accused Products.
52.  On information and belief, Respondent Unilumin LED Technology FL LLC is a ‘

limited liability company organized under the laws of Florida, with its principal operating business |

16
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Unilumin LED Technology FL. LLC imports, sells for importation, and/or markets, offers for sale,
sells, and distributes within the United States after importation the Accused Products manufacturled
by Unilumin Group.Co., Ltdis sca s s moe sosirs sasimmas o (o % g S5

53. On information and belief, Unilumin Group Co., Ltd. andi Unilumin LED
Technology FL LLC are related entities; these entities are therefore collectively 1»referred to herein
as “Unilumin.”

54. As further detailed below, Unilumin manufactures, imports into t;he United States,
sells for importation, and/or markets, sells, and distributes within the Uniited States after
importation one or more Accused Products that infringe, directly or indirectiy, 017;16 or more claims
of the Asserted Ultravision Patents. In addition, Unilumin uses, and actively%, knowingly, and

i
intentionally directs and/or induces others, and specifically intends for those fpthers, to use the
Accused Products in a manner that directly infringes the Asserted Ultravision P?tents. Unilumin
is not licensed to any of the Asserted Ultravision Patents. Respondent Unilumin:?s infringement is
knowing and intentional. . . - - _ Ce

qQ Yaham Optoelectrémic Co., Ltd. and Yaham
LED U.S.A., Inc. ,

.55, On information and belief, Respondent Yaham Optoelectronic Co., Ltd. is a
company incorporated under the laws of the People’s Republic of China, with its principal
operating business located. at #118 Yongfu Rd, Qiaotou Community, Fuyong%, Baoan District,
Shenzhen, P.R. China, 518103. On information and belief, Yaham Optoele;ctronic Co., Itd.
manufactures the Accused Products in China and imports, sells for impprtatiorjg offers for sale,

and/or sells within the United States after importation the Accused Products.

56. On information and belief, Respondent Yaham LED U.S.A., Inc. is a company

_ i;ll(;(‘):q;o‘_ra_ttéd‘- undelthe iaWs of Névﬁdé, w1th its 1_3r_irIc_ip—a1 c_>p'era;cii1é business_léézife-cl at 4058 Dean
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Martin Boulevard, Las Vegas, Nevada 89103. On information and belief, Yaham LED U.S.A.,

Inc. imports, sells forlimportation, and/or markets, offers for sale, sells, and distributes within the

United States after importation the Accused Products manufactured by Yaham Optoelectronic Co., _ _

Ltd.
| 57.  On information and belief, Yaham Optoelectronic Co., Ltd. and Yaham LED
UI:.S.A., Inc. are related entities; these entities are therefore collectively referr@d to herein as
“EYaham.”
58. As furithe.:r detailed below, Yaham manufactures, imports into the United States,

sells for importatiori, and/or markets, sells, and distributes within the United States after

itportation one or more Accused Products that infringe, directly or indirectly, one or more claims,
o?f the Asserted Ultr%lvision Patents. In addition, Yaham uses, and actively, knowingly, and
irixtentionally directs ;md/or induces others, and specifically intends for those others, to use the
A.Exccused Products in a manner that directly infringes the Asserted Ultravision Patents. Yaham is
k'-:nowin g and intentiohal.

2. ' The Private Label Respondents

a) Formetco Inec.

59. On infonnation and belief, Respondent Formetco Inc. (“Formetco”) is a company
it?lcorporated under the laws of Georgia, with its principal operating business located at 2963
P;leasant Hill Road, Duluth, Georgia 30096. As further detailed below, Formetco manufactures,
ir:Inports into the United States, sells for importation, and/or markets, offers for sale, sells, and

distributes within the United States after importation one or more Accused Products that infringe,

18

not. licensed to. any of the Asserted Ultravision Patents. Respondent Yaham’s infringement is .




specifically intends for those others, to use the Accused Products in a manner thatdirectly infringes
the Asserted Ultravision Patents. Formetco is not licensed to any of the Asserted Ultravision
--—- - —-Patents. Respondent Formetco’s infringement is knowing.and intentional . _ _ ____ . __ ______ . __

i

b) Leyard Optoelectronic Co., Ltd. and Leyard
American Corporation

60. On information and belief, Respondent Leyard Optoelectronic Cb., Ltd is a public
company incorporated under the laws of the People’s Republic of China, With its principal .
operating business located at No.9 Zhenghongqgi West Street, North of Summer Palace, Haidian
District, Beijing, China, 100091.

61.  Oninformation and belief, Respondent Leyard American Co;rpora:tion is a company
incorporated under the laws of Delaware, with its principal operating business located at 1692
Barclay Boulevard, Buffalc; Grove, Illinois 60089.

62. On information and belief, Leyard Optoelectronic Co., Ltd. and Leyard American

Corporation are related entities; these entities are therefore collectively referred to herein as

“Leyard.’f_

_63“.‘ , . As further detailed below, Leyard manufactures, imports into the United -States,
sells for importation, and/or markets, offers for sale, sells, and, distributes within|the United States
after importation one or more Accused Products that infringe, directly or indirectly, one or more
claims of the Asserted Ultravision Patents. In addition, Leyard uses, and activel}’il, knowingly, and

intentionally directs and/or induces others, and specifically intends for those others, to use the
: P - 1" T ‘ :

Accused Products in a manner that directly infringes the Asserted Ultravision Patents. Leyard is
: i : | [

not licensed to any of the Asserted Ultravision Patents. Respondent Leyard’s infringement is
i

(TR U VTR |
knowing and intentional.



c) Mitsubishi Electric Corporation and
Mitsubishi Electric Power Products, Inc.

64.  On information and belief, Respondent Mitsubishi Electric Corporation isa

Téokyo Building, 2-7-3, Marunouchi, Chiyoda, Tokyo, Japan.

. 65.  On information and belief, Respondent Mitsubishi Electric Power Products, Inc. is
aicompany incorporafed under the laws of Dela\yare, with its principal operating business %ocated
aflc Thorn Hill Industri?al Park, 530 Keystone Drive, ‘Warrendale, Pennsylvania 15086.

i 66.  On information and belief, Mitsubishi Electric Corporation and Mitsubishi Electric

Power Products, Inc. are related entities; these entities are therefore collectively referred ‘Fo herein
as “Mitsubishi.”

67. . As further detailed below, Mitsubishi manufactures, imports into the United States,
séalls for importation, %and/or markets, offers for sale, sells, and distributes within the United States
a;’fter importation onei or more Accused Products that infringe, directly or indirectly, one or more

cila_ims of the Asserted Ultravision Patents. In additi.on, Mitsubishi usés, and actively, kn'm_;vin-gly;
and intentionally directs and/or induces others, and specifically intends for those others, to use the
| |

|

Accused Products in 4 manner that directly infringes the Asserted Ultravision Patents. Mitsubishi
1

is not licensed to any of the Asserted Ultravision Patents. Respondent Mitsubishi’s infringement

i$ knowing and intenjpional.

d) NanoLumens Inc.

68. On information and belief, Respondent NanoLumens Inc. (“NanoLumens”) is a
company incorporated under the laws of Georgia, with its principal operating business located at

45900 Avalon Ridge Rarkway, Peachtree Corners, Georgia 30071. As further detailed below,

i

20

cbmpany incorporated under the laws of Japan, with its principal operating business located at

........................




offers for sale, sells, and distributes within the United States after importation one or more
Accused Products that infringe, directly or indirectly, one or more claims of the Asserted
5— - -- - --—- - —Ultravision Patents: -In-addition; NanoLumens uses; -and actively, knowingly;and intentionally--— - - -— e m -
directs and/or induces others, and specifically intends for those others, to use thé Accused |
Products in a manner that directly infringes the Asserted Ultravision Patents. NanoLumens is
not licensed to any of the Asserted Ultravision Patents. Respondent NanoLufnens’s infringement |

is knowing and intentional. : f

e) Panasonic Corporation and Panasomc
Corporation of North America

69.  Oninformation and belief, Respondent Panasonic Corporation is a public company
incorporated under the laws of Japan, with its principal operating business locat;ed at 1006, Oaza
Kadoma, Kadoma City in Osaka, Japan. l

70.  On information and belief, Respondent Panasonic Corporation of North America,
which uses a trade name of Panasonic Enterprise Solutions Company, is a company incorporated

| under the law:c, of Delaware, with its principal operating business located at Two Riverfront Plaza,

828 McCarter Highway, Newark, New Jersey 07102.

,71. On information and belief, Panasonic Corporation and Panasonic Corporation of

North America are related entities; these entities are therefore collectively reférred to herein as
“Panasonic.” 1 aa:
72.,  Asfurther detailed below, on information and belief, Panasonic plg1'chases Accused
Products from Respondent Lighthouse, relabels them (or has them relabeled) as Panasonic private-
label products, and sells them in the United States as Panasonic-branded products. Therefore, on
information and belief, Panasonic imports into the United States, and/or markefs offers for sale,

AN TAL S W AT LT T T T T T T T T T EERRESR RS T 0 T 0 m s s s s e m e - I' o -
sells, and distributes within the Umted States after importation relabeled, puvate -label Accused



P;roducts that infringe, directly or indirectly, one or more claims of the Asserted Ultravision
]E’;atellts. In addition, Panasonic uses, and actively, knowingly, and intentionally directs and/or

. induces others, and specifically intends for those others, to use the Accused Prodicts ina manner |
tlfllat directly infringes the Asserted Ultravision Patents. Panasonic is not licensed to any of the

Asserted Ultravision Patents. Respondent Panasonic’s infringement is knowing and intentional.

f) Vanguard LED Displays, Inc., formerly
Aeson LED Display, Technologies, Inc..

[ )

73.  On inf‘ormation and belief, Respondent Vanguard LED D;isplaysl? Inc., formerly
A;e'sfon LED Display ”j;l"e'chnologies, Inc. (“Vanguard”), is a company incorporated under the laws
oif Florida, with its principal operating bﬁsiness located at 4910 Waring Road, Unit 101, Lakeland,
F;jlorida 33811. As further detailed below, Vanguard manufactures, imports into the United States, i
s%clls for importation, and/or markets, offers for sale, sells, and distributes within the United States |
al:fter importation oneor more Accused Products that infringe, directly or indirectly, one or more
ciaims of the Asserteéi Ultravision Patents. In addition, Vanguard uses, and actively, knowingly,
a%ld intentionélly dire%:ts and/or induces others, and slﬁeci_ﬁcall_y intends for those others, to use the |
AEccused Products in 4 manner that directly infringes the Asserted Ultravision Patents. Vanguard i
1s not licensed to anyiof the Asserted Ultravision Patents. Respondent Vanguard’s infringement [
1s knowing and intentional.

3. 'The Distributor Respondents
a) ANC Sports Enterprises, LLC
74.  On information and belief, Respondent ANC Sports Enterprises, LLC (“ANC”) is

a Ecdmpany incorporated under the laws of Delaware, with its principal operating business at 2

Manbhattanville Road, Suite 402, Purchase, New York 10577. As further detailed. below, ANC

B iy I S

antifactires, irmports intd the United States, sélls for importation, and/or markets, offers forsale,” = ™~



sells, and distributes within the United States after importation one or more Accused Products that
infringe, directly or indirectly, one or more claims of the Asserted Ultravision Patents. In addition,

+--w--—__.ANC _uses, .and _actively, . knowingly, _and _intentionally. directs and/or induces _others,_and_

a2Ei) = —_—— e — - — = - &

specifically intends for those others, to use the Accused Products in a manner that/directly infringes
the Asserted Ultravision Patents. ANC is not licensed to any of the Asserted Ul‘{travision Patents.
Respondent ANC’s infringement is knowing and intentional. |
b) GoVision, LLC ]
75.  On information and belief, Respondent GoVision, LLC (“GoVisﬁon”) is a limited
liability company organized under the laws of Texas, with its principal operating business located
at 8291 Gateway Drive, Suite #100, Argyle, Texas 76226. As further detailed ébelow, GoVision
manufactures, imports into the United States, sells for importation, and/or markets, offers for sale,
sells, and distributes within the United States after importation one or more Accused Products that
infringe, directly or indirectly, one or more claims of the Asserted Ultravision Pat‘;ents. In addition,
GoVision uses, and actively, knowingly, and intentionally directs and/or induces others, and _
spe:ciﬁcalll}‘f intends for those others, T e Accused Products in a manner that|directly infringes
the Asserted Ultravision Patents. GoVision is not licensed to any of the Ass%erted Ult-ravision
Patents. Respondent GoVision’s infrlingemcnt is knowing and intentional.
c) RMG Networks Holding Corporatic;m
76.  On information and belief, Respo'rfdént RMG Networks Holding’ Corporation
(“RI\/[G’;) is a company incorporaté‘d under the laws of Delaware, with its pr‘:incipal operating
business located at 15301 Dallas Parkway, Suite 500, Addison, Texas 75001. A‘s further detailed
below, RMG manulfaictures',! imports into the United Sta’Fes, sells for importation, and/or markets,

S | \ I
offers for sale, sells, and distributes within the United States after importation one|or more Accused

| . i Y iy .
Products that infringe, directly or indirectly, one or more claims of the Asserted Ultravision
23



Péate'nts. In addition, RMG uses, and actively, knowingly, and intentionally directs and/or induces
o;thers, and specifically intends for those others, to use the Accuse& Products, in a manner that
B _(iiliegtly infringes the:Asserted Ultravision Patents. RMG is not licensed to any of the Asserted
qltravision Patents. Respondent RMG’s infringement is knowing and intentional.
I:II. THE ASSERTED ULTRAVISION PATENTS!
| A. The 306 Patent
1. Identification of the Patent and Ownershlp .
77.  United States Patent No. 9,349,306 is entitled “Modular Display Panel” and issued
ofn May 24, 2016. The *306 Patent is a continuation of U.S. Patent Application No. 14/444,719,
ﬁ?led on July 28, 2014, and claims priority to U.S. Provisional Patent Applic:i:ltion No. 62/025,463,
ﬁled on July 16,2014} and U.S. Provisional Patent Application No. 61/922,631, filed on December
3&1, 2013. The >306 Patent has thirty (30) claims, four (4) independent claims, and twenty-six (26)
dLependent claims. Alcertified copy of the 306 patent is attached to the Complaint as Exhibit 1.
78.  The inventor of the 306 Patent, William Hall, ass_igned his r_ig_hts in the *306 Patent

t6 Ultravision Holdings, LLC on July 23; 2014, which subsequently assigned its rights in the ’306
Péatent to Ultravisioni Technologies, LLC on August 25, 2014. Ultravision therefore owns, by
a%signment, all right;, title, and interest in and to the 306 Patent. A certified copy of the
aissignments of the *306 Patent is attached to the Complaint as Exhibit 2.

I 79.  Pursuant to Commission Rule 210.12(c), together with this Complaint,

Complainant has filed a certified copy and three additional copies of the prosecution history of

the *306 Patent as Appendix A. Complainant has filed four (4) copies of the *306 Patent and all
|

|
‘ ! The non-technical descriptions of the Asserted Ultravision Patents are provided herein

for. purpose of general information and. understanding and.are not. meant to. be.a position. with.

réspect to claim construction and/or other technical aspects of patent law.
|
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technical references identified in the prosecution history of the application leading to the issuance
of the 306 Patent as Appendix B.

i 2.---—Non-Technical Description.of the Patented Invention . _ . .

80. The ’306 Patent generally describes a cabinet-free, waterproojf, modular LED
display panel designed to be easily and quickly integrated into a larger LED disp;lay comprised of
any number of the individual modular LED display panels. The panel itself features a front-side
grid of louver-separated LEDs mounted on a printed circuit board, which is found inside a casing
containing other components. The 306 patent also discloses a mechanical support structure on
which such modular LED displays can be mounted to form an integrated display| panel.

3. Foreign Counterparts

81.  The foreign counterpart patents and/or applications to the *306 patent are given

below. Apart from those listed here, there are no other foreign patents qr foreign patent

|

applications pending, filed, abandoned, withdrawn, or rej ected relating to the 306 patent.

Country . Application Number | Status _ Patent Number
Australia 2014374062 Issued AU 2014374062
Australia 2017251806 Pending n/a !
Canada 2,933,711 Pending n/a
European Patent 14875899 8 Pending n/a
Office . .
United Kingdom 1518912.9 Issued - GB 2528001
Y Licenses
82. The;’306 patent is subject to a license agreement. Pursuant to Co:mmission Rule

\
210.12(2)(9)(iii), the licensee is identified in Confidential Exhibit 56,



B. The >782 Patent
1. Identification of the Patent and Ownership

83. _ United States Patent No. 9,916,782 is entitled “Modular Display Panel” and issued

on March 13, 2018. The *782 Patent is based on U.S. Patent Application No 15/ 162 439, ﬁled on
May 23 2016, which is based on U.S. Patent Apphcatlon No. 14/ 850 632 (wh1ch 1ssued asthe *306
gatent), which is based on U.S. Patent Application No. 14/444,719, and claims priority to U.S.
P%rovisional Patent Application No. 62/025,463, filed on July 16,2014, and U.S. Provisional Patent
Aépplication No. 6 1/9%22,63 1, filed on Decembe;‘ 31, 2013. The *782 Patent has thirlty (30) claims,
f%our (4) independent %olaims, and twenty-six (26) dependent claims. A certified copy of the 732
pEatent is attached to the Complaint as Exhibit 3.

| 84.  The inventor of the *782 Patent, William Hall, assigned his rights in the *782 Patent
té) Ultravision Holdings, LLC on July 23, 2014, which subsequently assigned its rights in the *306
P;atent to Ultravision Technologies, LLC on August 25, 2014. Ultravision therefore owns, by
a?ssignment, all_ righ’é, title, and interest in and to the ’782 Patent. A certified copy of the
a{ssigmnents of the ’7;;82 Patent is attached to the Complaint as Exhibit 4.

| 85.  Pursuant to Commission Rule 210.12(c), together with this Complaint,
Complainant has filed a certified copy and three additional copies of the prosecution history of
t}ile *782 Patent as A]%Jpeindix C. Complainant has filed four (4) copies of the *782 Patent and all
téchnical references identified in the prosecution history of the application leading to the issuance
otlf the *782 Patent as Appendix D.

:. 2.  Non-Technical Description of the Patented Invention

86.  The ’782 Patent generally describes a cabinet-free, waterproof, modular LED

dlsplay panel designed to be easily and quickly integrated into a larger LED dlsplay comprlsed of

any number of the individual modular LED display panels. The panel itself features a front-side
Pt R e
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grid of louver-separated LEDs mounted on a printed circuit board, which is found inside a shell
containing other components. The *782 patent also discloses various structures for protecting the
- - — - -~ — - -—panel from the environment as-well as-particular materials-for-making the panel thermally efficient. - . .. ... _.

3. Foreign Counterparts

87.  The foreign counterpart patents and/or applications to the *782| patent are given
below. Apart from those listed here, there are no other foreign patents or foreign patent

applications pending, filed, abandoned, withdrawn, or rejected relating to the ’7§2 patent.

Country Application Number | Status Patent Number
Australia 2014374062 Issued AU 2014374062 C
Australia 2017251806 Pending n/a :
Canada 2,933,711 Pending n/a !
Europealll Patent 14875899.8 Pending n/a |
Office .
United Kingdom 1518912.9 Issued GB 2528001 :
4. Licenses 1
- 88.  The ’782 patent is subject to a license agreement. Pursuant to chmmission Rule \

210.12(a)£9)(iii), the liceﬁsee is_identiﬁed i-n Conﬁdential Exhibit 57_..
IV.. PRODUCTS AT ISSUE 1 :
1 A. . Market for Modular LED Displays ‘ |
89.  Since Mr. Hall invented the UltraPanel and the technology iarotccted by the
Asserted Ultravision Patents, to which Ultravision now has exclusive rights, accused modular LED
digplays have quickly become very popular, with many manufacturers supplying unauthorized
copies to the United States, and many distributors purchasing, importing,i and/or reselling
unauthorized modular LFD displays in the United States.

90. In Septm!nber 2012, Ultravision engaged in discussions to have the UltraPanel

prodhc"cé manufactured i':n China. In 2013, Ultravision bega_n_rr_xam_lf_'actﬁx-'iné i.ts_ﬂl;cré\;iéiéﬂ 15a_né1:s B



.iﬁtellectua].property. and quality of the products. . . _ _ . __

in China, and continued manufacturing in China through April 2015. Shortly thereafter,

Ultravision ended its manufacturing activities in China due to ongoing concerns about theft of its

91.  During and since the petiod Ultravision was manufacturing the UltraPanels in
C;hina, there has beenja rapid proliferation of infringing modular LED displays, most of which are
rr;ade in China. Large volumes of unlicensed modular LED displays are advertised for purchase
oinline through Websi;tes such as www.alibaba.com. For example, a search for “modular LED
d:isplay’f on www.alibiaba.com returns 1,364 products, 1358 of which identify the supplier location
as China. See Ex. 5.

I 92. At the 2017 InfoComm trade show in Orlando, Florida (“InfoComm 20177),
domplainant observed at least 32 manufacturers exhibiting modular LED displays that, on
iﬁformation and belieif, infringe the Asserted Ultravision Patents. Complainant collected product
bErochures for as man;} of these manufacturers as possible, some of which confitm that the products
aire infringing: -Similarly; at Integrated Systems Europe 2018.trade show in. Amsterdam (“ISE
2501 8”), Complainant observed at least 43 manufacturers exhibiting modular LED displays that, on
irélformation and belieif, infringe the Asserted Ultravision Patents. Complainant collected product
bli'ochures for as many of these manufacturers as possible, some of which confirm that the products
aire infringing.

93.  Further, on information and belief, there are dozens, if not hundreds, of distributors
m the United States that are importing and/or selling modular LED displays as part of their custom
ﬂED display solutions that rely on the technology covered by the Asserted Ultravision Patents.

On information and belief, these distributors, some of which have been named as Respondents,




purchase and/or import infringing modular LED displays from one or more of the many foreign
manufacturers, and resell them as customized modular LED solutions.

e s - —— - —— 94~ - - Ag -digital-advertising -is- becoming-more - popular- and- ef-ﬁcienti,- the -market-for.— - . ___
custom LED displays is poised to continue to increase. t

B. Complainant’s Products

95. Since its founding, innovation has been a key driver of Ultravision’s success. With
a background in digital advertising and LED displays, Mr. Hall started Ultravision to re-invent the
technology behind digital LED displays.

96.  Prior to Ultravision’s development of its revolutionary UltraPanel product, LED- '

based digital displays suffered from significant problems, including overheating, high failure rates,
J 1

and large costs associated with their manufacturing, installation, and operation.

97.  For example, previous LED display panels were not waterproof,@ and thus needed

to be placed in a sealed cabinet in order to operate outside. These waterproof cabinets required

fans, -air- conditioning systems,. and three-phase.electric. power, which resulted.in very. high. .

operating costs.

98. Additiohéliy, previous LED display panels were not modular, meaning that each

. . [ ; = . ; i3
installation required a bespoke design. This resulted in expensive manufacturing, shipping, and

il agl Il B A M ' i = . . I, . aiis *
installation. These’LED' display panels were also difficult to maintain, often requiring expensive
|

maintenance contracts with specialized technicians.

99. Rleccl) gni.zlilng aneed in the industry for a more cost effective and ioverall improved

J |

' R | '
LED display solution, Mr. Hall, and a small team of engineers at Ultravision, completely

o S TR o L i
revolutivnized the industry by developing and introducing the Ultralanel product: a lightweight

| il | (

»modular,-waterpfodﬁLED display-panel in standard sizes.that can.easily be built.into large displays. . _______

[ T Py el oo
of different sizes and shapes, requires no waterproof outer cabinet, and runs on single-phase power
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electric power. Thislightweight, single-phase power, modular LED display panel dramatically
lc'?wered the customer’s total cost of installation and total cost of operation compared to older
--------- —tr‘;aditional—c—abinet-LED—display-designs.— As aresult.of these.innovations, Mr.. Hall been awarded _ .. ___ | _
nélmerous patents in fhe field of LED displays. The technology covered by these patents captures i
t}Ele key features in Ultravision’s innovative and ma;:rket-leading UltraPanel products. |
‘ 100. The UltraPanel" is one bf only Mo core product lines offered by Ultravision |
(Iljltrav151on makes hghtmg products in addition to dlgltal dlsplays) Ultrav1s10n s digital displays, il
s;:oreboards and b111boards rely on the UltraPane#I s innovative modular configuration to allow | :
c%;stom:LED solutiorils to be built to meet every customer’s unique needs. The UltraPanel has i '
eivolved from initial iarototypes that addressed only some of the problems discussed above, to a

fully integrated modular unit that has revolutionized the LED display market. A picture of one of

Ultravision’s UltraPanels is seen below:




(Figure 1 — Ultravision’s UltraPanel)

101. Each UltraPanel is approximately 1 foot by 2 foot, and can include anywhere from

1

- — - - —--512 pixels to-as many as-12,800 pixels_ The panels are sgcgi_ﬁgally_dgs_ign_esi Ell@ configured to be
assembled into larger LED signs and billboards. Ultravision’s UltraPanel -‘displays can be
configured and assembled as a small billboard or sign, a sports team’s scoreboard or digital display,
or even a large scale “Spectacular,” such as what is commonly seen in New York City’s Times
Square. In fact, Ultravision designed, developed, engineered, assembled, and installed a majority
of the LED displays in Times Square. One of Ultravision’s installations in Times Square is shown

below:




102. Further, Ultravision designed, engineered, manufactured, and installed an
inistallation on Cromwell Road in London, which is the largest digital display in Europe. The

Cromwell Road installation is_shown below:_ _ _

(Figure 3 — Ul:t_ravision’s UltraPar_lgis_pqh_t'Ig@lred as ciigitaﬂ i_)'illl_bc_)ard”ih_Loﬁdon)

|
103.  Upon !its introduction, the UltraPanel immediately made prior cabinet-based

d:esigns obsolete. THe UltraPanel’s unique combination of features has led to nearly the entire

LED display industry} including but not limited to Respondents, copying this modular, waterproof
: [

design. :
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(Figure 4 — The evolution of the LED display panel)
104.  As mentioned, Ultravision’s innovations in the field of LED technology have
resulted in numerous United States patents. Specifically, Ultravision owns be assignment the
rights to the Asserted Ultravision Patents. |

C. Accused Products

105... . Respondents’ Accused. Products in this Complaint are modular LED displays.

Respondents’ modular LED displays infringe the Asserted Ultravision Patent;s by copying the

unique and innovative features of Complainant’s modular LED displays that prq?wide for cabinet-
|

free, waterproof, scalable, and customizable outdoor LED solutions.

106. Respondents’ Accused Products are described further, wit;h representative

photographs, in Section VI.A below.

V. UNLAWFUL AND UNFAIR ACTS OF PROPOSED RESPONDENTS —
PATENT INFRINGEMENT |

107.  On information and belief, Respondents import into the Unite;d States, sell for

importation, and/or seill within the United States after importation Modular LED Displays in

[ E \
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108. The following chart shows the claims of the Asserted Ultravision' Patents that
Ultravision asserts against each Respondent: o
S --—Responden—ti— -|--—---2306-Ratent Claims - - — - | — - - 2782 Patent-Claims- - - —I e

Absen 1,4,6,7,8,10,12,13,14,16, |1,3,4,5,6,9,10,11,12, 13
18,19, 21, 23,25, 26

ANC 1,4,6,7,8,10,12, 13, 14, 16, 1,3;4,5,6,9,10,11,12,13
18,19, 21, 23,25, 26

AOTO 1,3,4,5,6,7,10,12,13,14, | 1,3,4,5,6,9,10,11, 12, 13,
16,17, 18,19, 21, 23, 25,26, 27 | 16, 22, 23, 24, 25,28 |

Barco 1,4,6,7,10,12,13, 14,16, 18, |1,3,4,5,6,9,10,11, 12, 13, |
19,21, 23, 25, 26 16 5y

Cirrus 1,4,5,6,7,8,9,10,12,13,14, | 1,3,4,5,6,9,10, 11, 12, 13, |
16, 18, 21,22, 23,25, 26,27 14, 16, 22,24, 25, 26,28 '

digiLED 1,4,6,7,8,10,12, 13, 14, 16, 1,2,4,5,6,9,10,11,12,
18, 19, 21, 23,25,26 13, 14, 16

Elation 1,6,7,8,10,12, 13, 14,16, 18, | 1,3,4,5,6,9, 10, 11, 12, 13,
19,21, 23, 25,26 16

Formetco 1,3,4,5,6,7,10,12, 13, 14, 1,3,4,5,6,9,10,11, 12, 13,
16,17, 18,19, 21,23, 25,26,27 | 16, 22,23, 24, 25,28

Glux 1,4,6,7,8,10, 12, 13, 14, 16, 1,2,4,5,6,9,10,11,12,
18, 19,21, 23, 25, 26 13, 14, 16

GoVision 1,4,6,7,8,10,12, 13, 14, 16, 1,2,4,5,6,9,10,11, 12,
18, 19,21, 23, 25,26 13, 14, 16

Ledman 1,4,5,6,7,8,10,12, 13, 14, 1,3,4,5,6, 9,10, 11, 12,
16, 18,21, 23, 25, 26 13, 16

Leyard 1,4,6,7,8,10,12, 13, 14, 16, 1,2,4,5,6,9,10,11, 12,
18,19, 21, 23, 25,26 13,14, 16

Liantronics 1,4,6,7,8,10, 12,13, 16, 18, 1,3,4,5,6,9,10, 11, 12, 13,
19,21, 23, 25, 26 16

Lighthouse 1,4,6,7,8,10, 12, 13, 14, 16, 1,3,4,5,6,9,10,11, 12, 13,
18, 19,21, 23, 25,26 16

Mitsubishi 1,4,6,7,8,10, 12, 13, 14, 16, 1,3,4,5,6,9,10,11,12, 13
18,19,21,23,25,26. . . . | ... ______.
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Respondent

’306 Patent Claims

”782 Patent Claims

MRLED 1,4,6,7,8,10, 12, 13,14, 16, |1,3,4,5,6,9,10, 11, 12, 13,

18,19, 21, 23, 25, 26 16 |
- NafioLuimens = -1 1,4;6,7; 10,712, 13, 14; 16,18, |1 3,4, 56,9107 11,12, 137 |~

19,21, 23,25, 26 16 |

Panasonic 1,4,6,7,8,10,12,13,14,16, |1,3,4,5,6,9,10, 11, 12, 13,
18, 19,21, 23, 25, 26 16

Prismaflex 1,3,4,6,7,10 12, 13, 14, 16, 1,3,4,5,6,9,10,11, 12,16
17,18, 19, 21, 23. 25, 26 |

RMG Network | 1,4,6,7, 8,10, 12, 13,16,18, |1,3,4,5,6,9, 10, 11, 12, 13,

Solutions 19, 21, 23,25, 26 16 :

Rocketsign 1,4,6,7,8,10,12, 13,14, 16, | 1,3,4,5,6,9, 10, 11, 12, 13,
18,19, 21, 23, 25, 26 16

Samsung 1,4,6,7,8,9,10,12, 13,14, | 1,3,4,5,6,9, 10,11, 12, 13
21,22, 23,25, 26

Sansi 1,4,6,8,12,13, 14, 16,18,19, | 1,3,4,5,6,9, 10, 11, 12, 13
21,23, 25, 26 -

Unilumin 1,4,6,7,8,10,12,13,14,16, |1,3,4,5,6,9,10,11, 12, 13,
18,19, 21,23, 25, 26 16 |

| Vanguard 1,4,6,7,8,10,12,13, 14,16, |1,3,4,5,6,9,10, 11,12, 13,

18,19.21,23, 25, 26 16 i

| Yaham 1,4,6,7,8,10,12,13,14,16, |1,3,4,5,6,9,10, 11, 12, 13
18,19, 21,23, 25, 26 |

| 109.

. : i
| A. Infringement of the ’306 Patent
|

On information and belief, Respondents sell for importation into the United States,

offer for sale for importation into the United States, import into the United States, and/or sell within

the U
claim

either]

ited States after 1mp011'1t10n Modular LED Displays that infringe one ori more of at least

s1,3,4,5, 6 s 8 9 10, 12, 13, 14, 16, 17, 18, 19, 21, 23, 25, 26, and 27 of the 306 patent

literally or under the doctrine of equivalents.







110.  Due to the nature of the custom LED business, and in particular, the size and cost

of custom LED solutions comprised of the Accused Products, purchasing a representative Accused

Product from each of the Respondents was not possible. In some cases, individual panels are not

chart that apphes clalmsl 3,4,5,6,7, 10 12 13, 14 16 17 18, 19, 21, 23, 25 26 and 27 of

available for purchase. Further, Respondents likely would have found any attempt to purchase
only a single sample panel suspicious and refused to sell Complainant a sample product. Thus, in
the absence of physical samples, some of Complainant’s infringement allegatiions are based on
publicly available information regarding the Accused Products. Additional sdetails regarding
Respondents’ infringement will be obtained during discovery.

1. The Manufacturing Respondents
a) Absen

111.  Examination of publicly available product literature related to 1;&ccused Products
offered for sale for importation, sold for importation, and/or imported by Réespondent Absen
demonstrates that Absen modular LED displays infringe at least claims 1, 4, 6, 7,i 8,10,12, 13, 14,
16, 18, 19, 21, 23, 25, and 26 of the *306 patent. A chart that applies claims 1, ‘4, 6,7,8, 10, 12,
13, 14, '1164, 18, :19, 21,: !23, 25, and 26 of the *306 patent to an infringing modlg,llarvLED dispiay
offered for sale for i‘r'nf)ortation, sold for importation, and/or imported by Respondent Absen is
attached as Exliibit 6.

il m oo

b) AOTO

112, Field examination of a physical sample of an Accused Product offered for sale for
irﬂpbfta‘ti‘on, 'sold for i'r‘nportation, and/or imported by Respondent AOTO, asgwell as publicly
a\'/ailillﬁblle :pro‘du‘c:t litélrature, demonstrates that AOTO modular LED displaysiinfringe at least
claims 1' 3,4, 6, 7,10, 12, 13, 14, 16, 17, 18, 19, 21, 23, 25, 26, and 27 of the *306 patent. A

the 306 patent to an mfrmgmg modular LED dlsplay offered for sale for 1mportat10n sold for
- 36
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importation, and/or imported by Respondent AOTO is attached as Exhibit 7.

c) Barco
e Eamaaon cE publicly exalable product/Ciecapure peluislto fuonsod Brodichs e o
oiffered for sale for :importation, sold for importation, and/or imported by Respondent Barco i |
diemonstrates that Barco modular LED displays infringe at least claims 1, 4, 6, 7, 10, 12, 13, 14,
1%6, 18, 19,21, 23, 25, and 26 of the *306 patent. A chart that applies claims 1, 4, 6, 7, 10, 12, 13,
1%4, 16,18, 19, 21, 23i 25, and 26 of the *306 patent to an infringing modular LED display qffer[ed

|
|
f(i)r sale for importatic'?n, sold for importation, and/or imported by Responderilt BarvTo is atta;ched! as ‘
Exhibit 8. |
. d) Cirrus !
114. Examination of publicly available product literature related to Accused Products
o:ffered for sale for importation, sold for importation, and/or imported by Respondent Cirrus
dEemonstrates that CirEruS modular LED displays infringe at least claims 1, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 12, ;
1:3, 14, 16, 1_8, 21, 22,; 23,'25,.26, anc_l 27 of the .’306 pa’gent. A chart that applie_s cl_air_ns 1,4, 5, §, B i
7, 8,9,10,12,13, 14,% 16, 18,21,22,23, 25, 26, and 27 of the *306 patent to an infringing modular
L%ED display offered t?’or sale for importation, sold for importation, and/or imported by Respondent
C:irrus is attached as ﬁxhibit 9.
I e) digiLED

115. Examination of publicly available product literature related to Accused Products

offered for sale for i1§‘np0rtation, sold for importation, and/or imported by Respondent digiLED

d%emonstrates that digllLED modular LED displays infringe at least claims 1, 4, 6, 7, 8, 10, 12, 13,

14, 16, 18, 19, 21, 23;; 25, and 26 of the *306 patent. A chart that applies claims 1, 4, 6, 7, 8, 10,

1;2, 13, 14, 16, 18, 19,é 21, 23, 25, and 26 of the *306 patent to an infringing modular LED display

offered for sale for importation, sold for importation, and/or imported by Respondent digiLED is
37
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attached as Exhibit 10.
f) Elation

_____1l6. Examination of publicly available product literature related to Accused Products

offered for sale for importation, sold for importation, and/or imported by Respondent Elation
demonstrates that Elation modular LED displays infringe at least claims 1, 6, 7,i8, 10, 12, 13, 14,
16, 18, 19, 21, 23, 25, and 26 of the ’306 patent. A chart that applies claims 1, 6,7,8,10,12, 13,
14, 16, 18, 19, 21, 23, 25, and 26 of the *306 patent to an infringing modular LED display offered
for sale for importation, sold for importation,_ and/or imported by Respondent Elation is attached
as Exhibit 11.

g) Glux

117.  Examination of publicly available product literature related to Accused Products
offered for sale for importation, sold for importation, and/or imported by Respondent Glux
demonstrates that Glux modular LED displays infringe at least claims 1, 4, 6, 7, 8, 10, 12, 13, 14,
16, 18_, 19, 21, 23, 25, _and_26 of the ’306 patent. A c_hart 'Fhafc applies claiAms4 1,54, 6,7,8,10,12,
15, 14, 16, 18; 19, 2‘1, 23, 25, and 26 of the "306 patent to an infringing modular LED display
offered for sale for importation, sold for importation, and/or imported by Respondent Glux is
attached as Exhibit 12.
{1 S 3 S h)' Ledman
118. ' Examination of publicly available product literature related to Accused Products
cl)ffe1i'ed !fdr S;lle for irripo‘rtéition, sold for importation, and/or imported by Respondent Ledman
ciémioﬁs‘t‘ratéé thalt Lédman modular ILED displays infringe at least clain'ﬂs 1, 4, 5, 6,7, 8,10, 12,
13, 14, 16, 18,21, 23, 25, and 26 of the *306 patent. A chart that applies claims 1, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 10,

offered for sale for importation, sold for importation, and/or imported by Respondent Ledman is
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attached as Exhibit 13.
i) Liantronics

119. Exammatlon of publicly available product literature related to Accused Products

e e e e m e e e - = m e — — e e — = e — = e - == =af= =i = - - S &

offered for sale for importation, sold for importation, and/or imported by Respondent Liantronics
d:emonstrates that Liantronics modular LED displays infringe at least claims 1, 4, 6, 7, 8, 10, 12,
1;’:, 16, 18, 19, 21, 23} 25, and 26 of the *306 patent. A chart that applies claims 1, 4, 6, 7, 8, 10,
1:_2, 13, 16, 18, 19, 21, 23, 25, and 26 of the ’306ipatent to an ir}fringing modular LED display
oszered for sale for importation, sold for importation, and/or imported by Respondent Liantronics
is attached as Exhibit 14,

i i) Lighthouse

. 120. Examihation of publicly available product literature related to Accused Products
offered for sale for irriportation, sold for importation, and/or imported by Respondent Lighthouse
dc‘:amonstrates that Lig}lthousc modular LED displays infringe at least claims 1, 4, 6, 7, 8, 10, 12,
lii%{ 14_, 16, 18, 19, 21i_ 23,_ 25, and 26 of the *306 patent. A chart that applies claims 1, 4, 6, 7, 8,
1(:), 12, 13, 14, 16, 1§, 19, 21, 23, 25, and 26 of the 306 patent to an infringing modular LED
di:splay offered for sale for importation, sold for importation, and/or imported by Respondent
L:ighthouse is attacheci as Exhibit 15.

| k) MRLED

121. Examihation of publicly available product literature related to Accused Products

offered for sale for importation, sold for importation, and/or imported by Respondent MRLED
dc%emonstrates that MRLED modular LED displays infringe at least claims 1, 4, 6, 7, 8, 10, 12, 13,
121 16, 18, 19,21, 23] 25, and 26 of the *306 patent. A chart that applies claims 1, 4, 6, 7, 8, 10,

12 13 14 16 18 19,‘21 23,25, and 26 of the ’306 patent to an 1nfr1ng1ng modular LED d1splay

offered for sale for importation, sold for importation, and/or 1mported by Respondent MRLED is
| 39




attached as Exhibit 16.

D Prismaflex

o 1_2_2._ i _E_)_(E_lr_ninatio_n_qf _pll?l_i_c_lyf av_ailgb_lq Brf)glu_c:c _li:c_efa_tL—l}‘? nre‘:Iatc_ad to_Ac_cused Products .

offered for sale for importation, sold for importation, and/or imported by Respondent Prismaflex
demonstrates that the Prismaflex modular LED displays infringe at least claims l-j., 3,4,6,7,10 12,
13, 14,16, 17,18, 19, 21, 23, 25, and 26 of the 306 patent. A chart that applies; claims 1, 3, 4, 6,
7,10 12,13, 14, 16, 17, 18, 19, 21, 23, 25, and 26 of the 306 patent to an infringing modular LED
display offered for sa}e for importgtion, sold for importation, and/or imported by Respondent
Prismaflex is attached as Exhibit 17. ‘

m) Rocketsign

123. Examination of publicly available product literature related to Accused Products
offered for sale for importation, sold for importation, and/or imported by Respondent Rocketsign
demonstrates that Rocketsign modular LED displays infringe at least claims 1, #, 6, 7, 8, 10, 12,
1'3, 14, 16, 18, 19_, 21, 23, 25,} and 26 _o_f tl_le 306 patent.A A chgrt the_lt applies' cl%aims 1,4,6,7,8,
10, 12, 13, 14, 16, 18,19, 21, 23, 25, and 26 of the *306 patent to an infringing modular LED
display offered for sale for importation, sold for importation, and/or imported by Respondent
Rocketsign is attached as Exhibit 18.

n) Samsung
124. JlEXeifninétion of publicly; available product literature related to Accused Products
o'ffefeld for sale for ‘iﬁdportation, sold fof‘importation, and/or imported by Respondent Samsung
demionstrates that Sarlrisdng modular LED displays infringe at least claims 1, 4, 6, 7,8,9, 10, 12,

1k | Vo | | l ‘
13,14, 21, 22,(23, 25, and 26 of the *306 patent. A chart that applies claims 1, 4, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10,



offered for sale for importation, sold for importation, and/or imported by Respondent Samsung,is

attached as Exhibit 19.

) Sansi

: 125. Examination of publicly available product literature related to Accused Products

offered for sale for importation, sold for importation, and/or imported by Respondent Sansi

demonstrates that Sansi modular LED displays infringe at least claims 1, 4, 6, 8, 12, 13, 14, 16,

138, 19, 21, 23, 25, and 26 ofthe ’306 patent. A chart that applies claims 1, 4, 6, 8, 12, 13, 14, 16,

1:8, 19, 21, 23, 25, ana 26 of the *306 patent to an infringing modular LED display offered for sale

f(;)r importation, sold for importation, and/or imported by Respondent Sansi is attached as Exhibit

20.

I p) Unilumin

126. Examifnation of publicly available product literature related to Accused Products

oEffered for sale for irfnportation, sold for importation, and/or imported by Respondent Unilumin

diernonstrates that Un:ilumin modular LED displays infringe gt least claims 1, 4,6,7,8,10,12, .13,
' 1;4,'16, 18,19, 21; 23}, 25, and 26 of the ’306 patent: A chart that applies claims 1, 4, 6, 7, 8, 10,

11:2, 13, 14, 16, 18, 19 21, 23, 25, and 26Iofthe ’306 patent to an infringing modular LED display : :

o?ffered for sale for importation, sold for importation, and/or imported by Respondent Unilumin is i i

aittached as Exhibit 21.

qQ Yaham
: 127. Field examination of a physical sample of an Accused Product offered for sale for

itnportation, sold for importation, and/or imported by Respondent Yaham, as well as publicly

a:vailable product litérature, demonstrates that Yaham modular LED displays infringe at least
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infringing modular LED display offered for sale for importation, sold for importation, and/or

imported by Respondent Yaham is attached as Exhibit 22.

—2...._ _The Private Label Respondents

a) Formetco

128.  On information and belief, Respondent Formetco is a U.S. based distributor that

purchases for importation, imports, and/or sells in the United States after importation, Accused

Products manufactured by Respondent Absen as part of its custom LED solutions. The Formetco

Accused Products are, therefore, identical, or nearly identical, to the Accused Products

manufactured by Respondent Absen. As explained above, examination of Qublicly available

product literature related to Accused Products manufactured by Respondent Absen demonstrates

that those products infringe at least claims 1, 3, 4, 5, 6,7, 10, 12, 13, 14, 16, 17, 18, 19,21, 23, 25,
26, and 27 of the 306 patent. A chart that applies independent claim 1, 3, 4, 5,6, 7,10, 12, 13,

14,16, 17,18, 19,21, 23, 25, 26, and 27 of the *306 patent to an infringing moduilar LED displays

manufactured by Respondent Absen and distributed by Respondent Formet<%o is attached as

Exhibit 23.

Cul

b) Leyard

129.  On information and belief, Respondent Leyard purchases Accused Products from

Respondent Glux and relabels them (or has them relabeled) as Leyard private-laﬁel products. The

Leyard Accused Products are, therefore, idehtical, or nearly identical, to the Accused Products

] | o= o . ot . . . ] . .
manufactured by Respondent Glux. As explained above, examination of publicly available

product literature related to Accused Products manufactured by Respondent Glux demonstrates

T S L RS " ‘
that private-label Leyard rlnodular LED displays also infringe at least claims 1, 4 6,7,8,10, 12,

b -
13 14 16 18 19 21 23 25 and 26 ofthe’306 patent. A chart that apphes clalmsl 4,6,7,8,

10, 12, 13, 14, 16, 18, 19, 21, 23, 25, and 26 of the 306 patent to an infringing modular LED
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clfisplay manufactured by Respondent Glux and relabeled as Leyard is attached as Exhibit 12.

c) Mitsubishi

130.  On information and belief, Respondent Mitsubishi purchases Accused Products

frEorn Respondent Yaham and relabels them (or has them relabeled) as 1\/([jtsubi\shi private-label
p:roducts. The Mitsubishi Accused Products are, therefore, identical, or nearly iden‘Fical, to vthe
Aiccused Products manufactured by Respondent Yaham. As explained gbovs‘e, e?(amir}a‘gion of
piublicly available product literature related to Accused Products manufactured by Respondent
S;(aham demonstrates| that private-label Mitsubishi modular LED displays also infringe at least
cl:laims 1,4,6,7,8,10,12, 13, 14, 16, 18, 19, 21, 23, 25, and 26 of the *306 patent. A chart that
a‘?pplies claims 1, 4, 6:, 7,8, 10, 12, 13, 14, 16, 18, 19, 21, 23, 25, and 26 of the *306 patent to an
irflfringing modular LED display manufactured by Respondent Yaham and relabeled as Mitsubishi
1; attached as Exhibit 2.
d) NanoLumens

131.  On information and belief, Respondent NanoLumens purchases A_c_c_used Products _
ftrom Respondent Abgen and relabels them (or has them relabeled) as NanoLumens private-label
ﬂroducts. The NanolLumens Accused Products are, therefore, identical, or nearly identical, to the
Accused Products manufactured by Respondent Absen. As explained above, examination of
p?ublicly available prc_;)duct literature related to Accused Products manufactured by Respondent
/i&bsen demonstrates that private-label NanoLumens modular LED displays also infringe at least
cilaims 1,4,6,7,10, ?12, 13, 14, 16,18, 19, 21, 23, 25, and 26 of the *306 patent. A chart that
azpplies claims 1, 4, 6!, 7,10,12, 13,14, 16, 18, 19, 21, 23, 25, and 26 of the 306 patent to an

infringing modular LED display manufactures by Respondent Absen and relabeled as

IﬁanoLumens is attached as Exhibit 24.




e) Panasonic

132. On information and belief, Respondent Panasonic purchases Accused Products

__from Respondent Lighthouse and relabels them (or has them relabeled) as Panasomc > private-label

products. The Panasonic Accused Products are, therefore, identical, or nearlx identical, to the
Accused Products manufactured by Respondent Lighthouse. As explained above, examination of
publicly available product literature related to Accused Products manufactureéd by Respondent '
Lighthouse demonstrates that private-label Panasonic modular LED displays also infringe at least
claims 1, 4, 6, 7, 8, 10, 12, 13, 14, 16, 18, 19, 21, 23, 25, and 26 of the *306 patent. A chart that
apblies claims 1, 4,6, 7, 8, 10, 12, 13, 14, 16, 18, 19, 21, 23, 25, and 26 of the é’.306 patent to an |
infringing modular LED display manufactured by Respondent Lighthouse %fmd relabeled as |
Panasonic is attached as Exhibit 15. )

f) Vanguard

133.  On information and belief, Respondent Vanguard purchases A:ccused Products

_from Respondent Rocketsign and relabels them (or has them relabeled) as Vanglélard private—label
products. The Vanguard Accused Products are, therefore, identical, or nearly identical, to the

Accused Products manufactured by Respondent Rocketsign. As explained above examination of

pubhcly available product literature related to Accused Products manufacture!d by Respondent

Rockotaign dem01lstratcs that private-laioel Vanguard modular LED displays alsso infringe at least

cldims 1’ 4,6,7, 8,10, 12,13, 14, 16, 18, 19, 21, 23, 25, and 26 of the *306 patent. A chart that

apl.l)hlesl claims 1 4 '6, 7, 8,10, 12, 13, 14, 16, 18, 19, 21, 23, 25, and 26 of the l’306 patent to an

1nfr1ng1ng modular LED display manufactured by Respondent Rocketsign and relabeled as |

o | | o ' o ]
Vanguard is attached as Exhibit 18.
. O



3. . The Distributor Respondents
a) ANC

134. On information and belief, Respondent ANC is a U.S. based distributor that

piurchases for importétion, imports, and/or sells in the United States after impor\tation,{ Accused
P;roducts manufactured by Respondent Yaham and re-labeled by Respondent Miltsubishi as part of
itis custom LED solutions. The ANC Accused Products are, therefore, identical, or nearly identical,
tc%a the Accused Products manufactured by Respondent Yaham. As explained above, examination
ofpublicly available product literature related to Accused Products manufactured by Rp§pondent
S'éaham demonstrates!that those products infringe at least claims 1, 4, 6, 7, 8, 10, 12, 13, 14, 16,

18, 19, 21, 23, 25, and 26 of the °306 patent. A chart that applies claims 1, 4, 6, 7, 8, 10, 12, 13,

114, 16, 18, 19, 21, 2]3, 25, and 26 of the *306 patent to an infringing modular LED display

manufactured by Respondent Yaham and distributed by Respondent ANC is attached as Exhibit

|
i

22.

b)  GoVision | =

-135. On information- and belief, Respondent GoVision is a U.S. based distributor that I
pfurchases for impo_rtéltion, imports, and/or sells in the United States after importation, Accused
Piroducts manufactured by Respondent digiLED as part of its custom LED solutions. The

GoVision Accused Products are, therefore, identical, or nearly identical, to the Accused Products

rr:tlanufactured by Respondent digiLED. As explained above, examination of publicly available
p‘toduct literature rela%ced to Accused Products manufactured by Respondent digiL ED demonstrates

that those products infringe at least claims 1,4, 6, 7, 8, 10, 12, 13, 14, 16, 18, 19, 21, 23, 25, and

26 of the ’306 patent.é A chart that applies claims 1, 4, 6, 7, 8, 10, 12, 13, 14, 16, 18, 19, 21, 23,
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¢) RMG

136. On information and belief, Respondent RMG is a U.S. based distributor that

. purchases for importation, imports; and/or sells in the United States after importation, Accused .

Products manufactured bﬁ;’li{;espondent Liantronics as part of its custom LED solutions. The RMG
Accused Products are, II ﬂ:ﬁereforc, identical, or ﬁcarly identical, to the Accused Products
manufactured by Respondent Liantronics. As explained above, examination of Publicly available
product literature related to Accused Products manufactured by Responident‘ Liantronics
demonstrates that those products infringe at least claims 1., 4,6,7,8,10, 12,13, 16, 18,19, 21, 23,
25, and 26 of the *306 patent. A chart that applies claims 1, 4, 6, 7, 8, 10, 12, 13, 16, 18,19, 21,
23, 25, and 26 of the ’306 patent to an infringing modular LED display Smanufacturqd by
Respondent Liantronics and distributed by Respondent RMG is attached as Exhibit 14.

1

B. Infringement of the 782 Patent

137. On information and belief, Respondents sell for importation into the United States,
offer for sale for importqtiog__in?o t}}c_a United States, irpgort into the United States, jand/or sgll within
the United States after importation Modular LED Displays that infringe one or more of at least”
claims 1,2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 9,10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 16, 22, 23, 24,25, 26, and 28 of the 1782 patent either
literally or under the doctrine of equivalents.

138.  Due to the nature of the custom LED business, and in particular, the size and cost
of custorln LED solutions comprised of the Accused Products, purchasing a represjentative Accused
Produét t“romteach of the Respondents was not possible. In some cases, individlélal panels are not
élvaiiable for purchasel. Further, Respondents likely would have found any attémpt to purchase

only a single sample panel suspicious and refused to sell Complainant a sample product. Thus, in
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ppblicly available information regarding the Accused Products. Additional details regarding
Respondents’ infringement will be obtained during discovery.
. 1 TheManufacturingRespondents .

a)  Absen
139. Examination of publicly available product literature related to Accused Products
offered for sale for importation, sold for importation, and/or imported by Respondent Absen '
demonstrates that Absen modular LED dlsplays infringe at least claims 1, 3, 4, 5, 6, 9, 10, 11, 12, |
and 13 of the *782 patent A chart that apphes claims 1, 3,4,5,6,9,10, 11,12, and 13 ofthe 7782
patent to an infringing modular LED display offered for sale for importation, sold for importation, !
and/or imported by Respondent Absen is attached as Exhibit 25. | |
| b) AOTO
140.  Field dxamination of a physical sample of an Accused Product offered for sale for
il;"n})()l'télﬁOl‘l, sold fori importation, and/or imported by Respondent AOTO, as well as publicly |
a‘ivailable p_roduct liteérature, demonstrates tnat AOTO modular LED displays infringe at least
cilaims 1,3,4,5,6, 9!, 10, 11, 12, 13, 16, 22, 23, 24, 25, and 28 of the *782 patent. A chart that
applies claims 1, 3, 4', 5,6,9,10, 11, 12, 13, 16, 22, 23, 24, 25, and 28 of the *782 patent to an
infringing modular DED display offered for sale for importation, sold for importation, and/or
imported by RespondEnt AOTO is attached as Exhibit 26.
) Barco
141. Examination of publicly available product literature related to Accused Products

o;ffered for sale for importation, sold for importation, and/or imported by Respondent Barco

d'emonstrates that Barco modular LED displays infringe at least claims 1, 3, 4, 5, 6, 9, 10, 11, 12,

13 and 16 of the ’782 patent A chart that apphes claims 1, 3,4,5,6,9, 10, 11, 12,13, and 16 of
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importation, and/or imported by Respondent Barco is attached as Exhibit 27.

d) Cirrus

offered for sale for importation, sold for importation, and/or imported by Respondent Cirrus‘
demonstrates that Cirrus modular LED displays infringe at least claims 1, 3, 4, 5, 6, 9, 10, 11, 12,
13, 14, 16,22, 24, 25, 26, and 28 of the *782 patent. A chart that applies claims 1, 3,4,5,6,9, 10,
11,12, 13, 14, 16, 22, 24, 25, 26, and 28 of the *782 patent to an infringing modfular LED display
offerc?d for sale for importation, sold for importation, and/or imported by Respondent Cirrus is
attached as Exhibit 28.
e) digiLED
143. Examination of publicly available product literature related to Accused Products
offered for sale for importation, sold for importation, and/or imported by Respondent digiLED
demonstrates thgt digiLED modular LED displays infringe at least claims 1, 2, 4, 5,6,9,10, 11,
12,13, 14, and 16 of the *782 patent. A chart that applies claims 1, 2 ; 4? 5_, 6, {9, _10, 11, 12, 13,
14, and 16 of the *782 patent to an infringing modular LED display offcre;d for sale for importation,
sold for importation, and/or imported by Respondent digiLED is attached as Exhibit 29.
f) Elation
144. Examination of publicly available product literature related to A;xccused Products
offered for sale for importation, sold for importation, and/or importeél by Re%spondént Flation
demonstrates that Elation modular LED displays infringe at least claims 1, 3, 4, 51’ 6,9,10,11, 12,
13, and 16 of the 782 patent. A chart that applies claims 1, 3, 4, 5, 6, 9,10, 11,112, 13, and 16 of
the 782 patent to an infringing modular LED display offered for sale for impiortation, sold for

importation, and/or imported by Respondent Elation is attached as Exhibit 30.

142 Bxamination of publicly available product literature related to Accused Products



g) Glux

145.  Examination of publicly available product literature related to Accused Products

offeled for sale for 1mpo1tat10n sold for 1mportat10n and/or lmported by Respondent Glux

demonstrates that Glux modular LED displays 1nfr1nge at least clalms 1,2,4,5,6,9, 10, 11 12,
13 14, and 16 of the!’782 patent. A chart that applies claims 1,2, 4, 5, 6, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14,
and 16 of the *782 patent to an infringing modular LED display offered for sale for importation,
sold for importation, and/or imported by Respondent Glux is attached as Exhibit 31.
h) Ledman

146. - Examination of publicly available product literature related to Accused Products
oiffered for sale for importation, sold for importation, and/or imported by Respondent Ledman
diemonstrates that Ledman modular LED displays infringe at least claims 1, 3, 4, 5, 6, 9, 10, 11,
152, 13, and 16 ofthei;’782 patent. A chart that applies claims 1,3, 4, 5, 6, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, and
16 of the *782 patentito an infringing modular LED display offered for sale for importation, sold

for importation, and/or imported by Respondent Ledman is attached as Exhibit 32.
| - i) Liantronics _ -

147. Examination of publicly available product literature related to Accused Products
oszered for sale for importation, sold for importation, and/or imported by Respondent Liantronics
dEemonstrates that Liantronics modular LED displays infringe at least claims 1, 3, 4, 5, 6, 9, 10, 11,
1?, 13, and 16 of the ’§782 patent. A chart that applies claims 1, 3,4, 5, 6,9, 10, 11, 12, 13, and 16
oif the *782 patent to dn infringing modular LED display offered for sale for importation, sold for
irnportation, and/or imported by Respondent Liantronics is attached as Exhibit 33.

' j) Lighthouse

148.  Examihation of publicly available product literature related to Accused Products

_ offe1ed for sale for importation, sold for lmportatlon and/or 1mported by Respondent nghthouse
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demonstrates that Lighthouse modular LED displays infringe at least claims 1, 3; 4, 5, 6,9, 10, 11,
12,13, and 16 of the 782 patent. A chart that applies claims 1, 3, 4,5, 6,9, 10, 11,12, 13, and 16

‘. _. ... ofthe’782 patent to an infringing modular LED display offered for sale for importation, sold for _

importation, and/or imported by Respondent Lighthouse is attached as Exhibit 34.
k) MRLED

149.  Examination of publicly available product literature related to Accused Products
offered for sale for importation, sold for importation, and/or imported by Respondent MRLED
demonstrates that MRLED modular LED displays infringe at least claims 1, 3, '4, 5,6,9,10, 11,

| 12, 13, and 16 of the 782 patent. A chart that applies claims 1, 3, 4,5, 6, 9, 10, :ll, 12,13, and 16 .

of the *782 patent to an infringing modular LED display offered for sale for importation, sold for
importation, and/or imported by Respondent MRLED is attached as Exhibit 35. |

D Prismaflex
150. Examination of publicly available product literature related to Accused Products
offered for sale for importation, sold for importation, and/or imported by Respandent Prismaflex
" démonstrates that the Prismaflex modular LED displays infringe at least claims ‘}, 3,4,5,6,9,10,
11, 12, and 16 of the *782 patent. A chart that applies claims |1, 3,4,5,6,9, 10,% 11,12, and 16 of
the *782 patent to an infringing modular LED display offered for sale for impiortation, sold for
importation, and/or imported by Respondent Prismaflex is attached as Exhibit 3§ .
m) Rocketsign
151. Examination of publicly available product literature related to Accused Products
offered for sale for importation, sold for importatioﬁ, and/or imported by Respo%ndent Rocketsign
demonstrates that Rocketsign modular LED displays infringe at least claims 1, 3 ; 4,5,6,9,10,11,
12,13, and 16 of the *782 patent. A chart that apphes claims 1,3,4,5,6,9, 10 11 12 13 and 16_ ) :

of the *782 patent to an infringing modular LED display offered for sale for importation, sold for
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importation, and/or imported by Respondent Rocketsign is attached as Exhibit 37.

n) Samsung
4
152. Examination of publicly available product literature related to Accused Products

ojffered for sale for irri;portation, sold for importation, and/or imported by Respondent Samsung
d:emonstrates that Samsung modular LED displays infringe at least claims 1, 3, 4, 5, 6,9, 10, 11,
1é2, and 13 of the *782 patent. A chart that applies claims 1,3, 4,5, 6,9, 10, 11, 12, and 13 of
tllfle 782 patent to an i\'nfringing modular LED display offered for sale for importation, sold for
irjnportation, and/or iriélported by Respondent Samsung is attached as Exhibit 38.
. 0) Sansi

153. Exami%nation of publicly available product literature related to Accused Products
offered for sale for iimportation, sold for importation, and/or imported by Respondent Sansi
dfemonstrates that Sansi rhodular LED displays infringe at least claims 1, 3,4, 5, 6,9, 10, 11, 12,
aind 13 of the *782 patent. A chart that applies claims 1, 3,4, 5, 6,9, 10,11, 12, and 13 of the *782
p:_a’gent to an infringiné modular LED display offered for sale for importation, sold for importation,
a;nd/or imported by R;espondent Sansi is attached as Exhibit 39.
: ! p) Unilumin

154. Examination of publicly available product literature related to Accused Products
o:.ﬂ"ered for sale for ﬁnpoﬂation, sold for importation, and/or imported by Respondent Unilumin
(iemonstrates that Unilumin modular LED displays infringe at least claims 1, 3, 4, 5, 6, 9, 10, 11,
LEZ, 13, and 16 of the ;’782 patent. A chart that applies claims 1, 3,4, 5, 6,9, 10, 11, 12, 13, and 16
dif the *782 patent to jian infringing modular LED display offered for sale for importation, sold for

ifrnportation, and/or irinpor'ted by Respondent Unilumin is attached as Exhibit 40.
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q) Yaham

155.  Field examination of a physical sample of an Accused Product offered for sale for

- . importation, sold for importation, and/or imported by Respondent Yaham, as well as publicly

available product literature, demonstrates that Yaham modular LED displays infringe at least
claims 1, 3,4, 5,6, 9, 10, 11, 12, and 13 of the *782 patent. A chart that appliesi claims 1, 3, 4, 5,
6,9, 10, 11, 12, and 13 of the *782 patent to an infringing modular LED displa;y offered for sale
for importation, sold for importation, and/or imported by Respondent Yaham is aﬁached as Exhibit
41.

2. The Private Label Respondents

a) Formetco

156.  On information and belief, Respondent Formetco is a U.S. baséd distributor that

|
purchases for importation, imports, and/or sells in the United States after importation, Accused
)

}
Products manufactured by Respondent Absen as part of its custom LED solutiox}s. The Formetco

Accused Products are, therefore, identical, or nearly identical, to the Aiccused Products

manufactured by Respondent' Absen. ‘As explained above, examination of pzublicly available - !

: | !
product literature related to Accused Products manufactured by Respondent Ab;sen demonstrates

that those products infringe at least claims 1, 3, 4, 5, 6, 9, 10, 11, 12,13, 16, 22, 23,24,25,and 28
!
of the *782 patent. A chart that applies claims 1, 3, 4, 5, 6, 9,10, 11, 12, 13, 16, 22, 23, 24, 25,

|
and 28 of the *782 patent to an infringing modular LED display manufacture:d by Respondent

Absen and distributed by Respondent Formetco is attached as Exhibit 42.

b) Leyard |

157.  On information and belief, Respondent Leyard purchases Accused Products from

Leyard Accused Products are, therefore, identical, or nearly identical, to the Accused Products
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manufactured by Respondent Glux. As explained above, examination of publicly available
pfroductlliterature related to Accused Products manufactured by Respondent Glux demonstrates

_tﬂ@t_ private-label Leyard modular LED displays also infiinge at Jeast claims 1,2, 4, 3, 6, 9, 10,

1:1, 12, 13, 14, and 16 of the *782 patent. A chart that applies claims 1, 2, 4,5,6,9,10, 11, 12,
133, 14, and 16 of the *782 patent to an infringing modular LED display manufactured by
REespondent Glux and relabelec} as Leyard is attached as Exhibit 31.
) Mitsubishi
15 8'.. On information and belief, Respon'dent Mitsubishi purchases Accused Products

from Respondent Yaham and relabels them (or has them relabeled) as Mitsubishi private-label

products. The Mitsw;bishi Accused Products are, therefore, identical, or nearly identical, to the

t

A:;ccused Products m;anufactured by Respondent Yaham. As explained above, examination of

publicly available pri)duct literature related to Accused Products manufactured by Respondent

Yaham demonstrates| that private-label Mitsubishi modular LED displays also infringe at least
! |

claims 1,3, 4,5,6,9] 10, 11, 12, and 13 of the *782 patent. A chart that applies claims I, 3, 4, 5,
6,9, 10, 11,12, and 13 of the *782 patent to an infriniging modular LED display manufactured by

1i;espondent Yaham and relabeled as Mitsubishi is attached as Exhibit 41.
I d) NanoLumens

159.  On information and belief, Respondent NanoLumens purchases Accused Products
f;rom Respondent Athen and relabels them (or has them relabeled) as NanoLumens private-label
pEroducts. The Nanoﬁ,umens Accused Products are, therefore, identical, or nearly identical, to the
Accused Products manufactured by Respondent Absen. As explained above, examination of

publicly available pr(;jduct literature related to Accused Products manufactured by Respondent
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e e e et @) —_ _Panasomic. _ . ___ ______

4,5,6,9,10, 11,12, 13, and 16 of the *782 patent to an infringing modular LED display

manufactured by Respondent Absen and relabeled as NanoLumens is attached as Exhibit 43.

160. On information and belief, Respondent Panasonic purchases Accused Products
from Respondent Lighthouse and relabels them (or has them relabeled) as Panasonic private-label
products. The Panasonic Accused Products are, therefore, identical, or nearly identical, to the
Accused Products manufactured by Respondent Lighthouse. As explained above, examination of
publicly available product literature related to Accused Products manufactured by Respondent
Lighthouse demonstrates that private-label Panasonic modular LED displays also infringe at least
claims 1,3,4,5,6,9, 10, 11, 12, 13, and 16 of the *782 patent. A chart that applies claims 1, 3, 4,
5,6,9,10,11,12, 13, and 16 of the *782 patent to an infringing modular LED dispilay manufactured
by Respondent Lighthouse and relabeled as Panasonic is attached as Exhibit 34.

f) Vanguard

161.  On information and belief, Respondent Vanguard purctiases Accused Products

from Respondent Rocketsign and relabels them (or has therh relabeled) as Vanguard private-label
products. The Vanguard Accused Products are, therefore, iaentical, or nearlj;/ identical, to the
Accused Products manufactured by Respondent Rocketsign. As explained aboxﬁe, examination of
publicly available product literature related to Accused Products manufacturéd by Respondent
| Rocketsign demonstrates that private-label Vanguard modular LED displays also infringe at least
claims 1, 3,4, 5,6,9, 10, 11, 12, 13, and 16 of the *782 patent. A chart that applties claims 1, 3, 4,
5,6,9,10,11, '12, 13, and 16 of the ’782 patent to an infringing modular LED dispglay manufactured

by Respondent Rocketsign and relabeled as Vanguard is attached as Exhibit 37.



3. The Distributor Respondents

a)  ANC

p:urchases for importation, imports, and/or sells in the United States after importation, Accused
Pgroducts manufabtureid by Respondent Yaham and .re-labeled by Respondent Mitsubishi as part of
it:s custom LED solutions. The ANC Accused Products are, therefore, identical, or nearly identical,
tci) the Accused Products manufactured by Respondent Yaham. As explained above, examination
of publicly available iaroduct literature related to Accused Products manufactured by Respondent
Y:Laham demonstrates 1thaf those products infringe at least claims 1, 3, 4, 5,6, 9, 10, 11, 12, and 13
o'ffthe >782 patent. A;chart that applies claims 1, 3,4, 5, 6, 9, 10, 11, 12, and 13 of the *782 patent
to& an infringing mod?ular LED display manufactured by Respondent Yaham and distributed by
R:espondent ANC is alfttached as Exhibit 41.

b) GoVision

162.  On information and belief, Respondent ANC is a U.S. based distributor that

163. On infomation and belief, Respondent GoVision is a U.S. based distributor that

péurchases for importl?ttion, imports; and/or sells in the United States after importation, Accused
P;roducts manufacturied by Respondent digiLED as part of its custom LED solutions. The
éoVision Accused Pli'oducts are, therefore, identical, or nearly identical, to the Accused Products
niqanufactured by Respondent digiLED. As explained above, examination of publicly available
piro duct literature rela%ced to Accused Products manufactured by Respondent digiLED demonstrates
tlilat those products in?fringe at least claims 1,2, 4, 5, 6,9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, and 16 of the *782
pjatent. A chart that a{fpplies claims 1,2,4,5,6,9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14; and 16 of the *782 patent to

| ;
ah infringing modular LED display manufactured by Respondent digiLED and distributed by

Respondent GoVision is attached as Exhibit 29.
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¢ RMG

164. On information and belief, Respondent RMG is a U.S. based distributor that

_ _purchases for importation, imports, and/or sells in the United States after importation, Accused

Products manufactured by Respondent Liantronics as part of its custom LED solutions. The RMG
Accused Products are, therefore, identical, or nearly identical, to the Accused Products
manufactured by Respondent Liantronics. As explained above, examination of publicly available
product literature related to Accused Products manufactured by Respon;dent Liantronics
demonstrates that those products infringe at least claims 1, 3, 4, 5, 6, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, and 16 of
the *782 patent. A chart that applies claims 1, 3,4, 5,6, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, and 16 thhe *782 patent
to an infringing modular LED display manufactured by Respondent Liantronics and distributed by
Respondent RMG is attached as Exhibit 33.
VI. RELATED LITIGATION

165. On. August 11, 2016, Ultravision brought an action against; Shenzhen Only
Optoelestronic Co Ltd (“Shenzhen Only”) in the United States District Court for the Eastern
District of Texas, alleging infringement of the ’306 patent. The case was styled Ultravision
Technologies, LLC v. Shenzhen Only Tech Co Ltd, Case No. 2:16-cv-895. A default judgment in
favor of Ultravision was entered on November 15, 2017. ‘

VII. SPECIFIC INSTANCES OF UNFAIR IMPORTATION AND SALE

166. On information and belief, Respondents are offering for sale for importation, selling
for importation, importing, and/or selling in the United States after importation Modular LED
Displays that infringe one or more claims of the Asserted Ultravision Patents and/or are the subject

of unfair methods of competition in violation of Section 337, and will continue to do so.

167. The success of Ultravision’s _U_lt_ra_P_ane_ls‘ has attracted many entrants to the

marketplace whose knock-off products are manufactured in China and imported into the United

56



States. The importation and sale after importation of these knock-off LED products is a significant
ajnd expanding problem.
anufacturing Respondents
1. Absen
168.  On information and belief, modular LED displays that infringe the *306 patent and
the 782 patent are fmpoﬂed, sold for importation, and/or sold within the United States after
irinportation by Resﬁondent Absen. Absen manufactures Accused Products in China. See
¢onﬁdential Ex. 53, Credelle Dec. 1 5-6. Absen then sells the Accused Products for importation
ir31to the United States, imports them into the United States, and/or sells them within ths United
Sltates after importatié)n. See Confidential Ex. 53, Credelle Dec. 15, 7-8.
2 | AOTO
169. On information and belief, modular LED displays that infringe the *306 patent and
the *782 patent are imported, sold for importation, and/or sold within the United States after
iEmportation by Resﬁondent AOTO. AOTO manufactures Accqsed Product(s) in China. Se_e

¢0nﬂde,ntia1 Ex. 53, Credelle Dec. {{ 9-10. AOTO then sells the Accused Products for

i:mportation into the United States, imports them into the United States, and/or sells them within _

tihe United States aftér importation. See Confidential Ex. 53, Credelle Dec. { 10-12. I’
3. Barco

170. On information and belief, modular LED displays that infringe the *306 patent and

£he *782 patent are imported, sold for importation, and/or sold within the United States after

iirnportation by Respondent Barco. Barco manufactures Accused Product(s) in Belgium and/or

(Ehina. See Confidential Ex. 53, Credelle Dec. { 13-14. Barco then sells the Accused Products

for importation into the United States 1mports them into the Umted States and/or sells them within

the United States aftér importation. See Confidential Ex. 53, Credelle Dec. | 14-15.
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4, Cirrus

171.  On information and belief, modular LED displays that infringe the *306 patent and

_ the °782 patent are imported, sold for importation, and/or sold within the United States after.

importation by Respondent Cirrus. Cirrus’s Accused Products are made in China. See
Confidential Ex. 53, Credelle Dec. § 16. Cirrus then sells the Accused Productés for importati;)n
into the United States, imports them into the United States, and/or sells them within the United
States after importation. See Confidential Ex. 53, Credelle Dec. 9 16-18. :
5. digiLED

172.  On information and belief, fnodular LED displays that infringe th;s ’306 patent and
the 782 patent are imported, sold for importation, and/or sold within the United States after
importation by Respondent digiLED. digiLED’s Accused Products are madc% in China and/or

|
Taiwan. See Confidential Ex. 53, Credelle Dec. § 19. digiLED then sells the Accused Products

for importation into the United States, imports them into the United States, and/orjsells them within

 the United States after importation. See Confidential Ex. 53, Credelle Dec. §120-21.

6. Elation

173.  On information and belief, modular LED displays that infringe the *306 patent and
the *782 patent are imported, sold for importation and/or sold within the United States after
importation by Respondent Elation. Elation sells the Accused Products for importation into the
United States, imports them into the United States, and/or sells them within the I.;Tnited States after

importation. See Confidential Ex. 53, Credelle Dec. ] 22-23.

7 Glux

174.  On information and belief, modular LED displays that infringe the *306 patent and

importation by Respondent Glux. Glux’s Accused Products are made in China. ;See Confidential
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_ _importation._See Confidential Ex. 53, Credelle Dec. 125-27.

Ex. 53, Credelle Dec. § 24. Glux then sells the Accused Products for importation into the United

S:tates, imports them into the United States, and/or sells them within the United States after

8. Ledman

175. On information and belief, modular LED displays that infringe the 306 patent and
tII:le >782 patent are imported, sold for importation, and/or sold within the United States after
ill‘jnportation by Respondent Ledman. Ledman sells the Accused Products for importation into the
U:'nited States, imports them into the United States, "and/or sells them within the United States after
ir:nportation. See Confidential Ex. 53, Credelle Dec. {f 28-29.

' 9. ' Liantronics
176. On information and belief, modular LED displays that infringe the *306 patent and

the *782 patent are imported, sold for importation, and/or sold within the United States after

importation by Respondent Liantronics. Liantronics’s Accused Products are made in China. See

| )
Credelle Dec.  30. Liantronics then sells the Accused Products for importation into the United =

‘States, imports them into the United States, and/or sells them within the United States after

irlnportation. See Confidential Ex. 53, Credelle Dec. §Y 31-33.

10. : Lighthouse

177.  On information and beiief, modular LED displays that infringe the 306 patent and
tlljle ’782 patent are imported, sold for importation, and/or sold within the United States after
hfnportation by Respbndent Lighthouse. Lighthouse sells the Accused Products for importation
ix?lto the United States, imports them into the United States, and/or sells them within the United

States after importation. See Confidential Ex. 53, Credelle Dec. { 34-36.

11. MRLED

178.  On information and belief, modular LED displays that infringe the *306 patent and
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the 782 patent are imported, sold for importation, and/or sold within the United States after

importation by Respondent MRLED. MRLED’s Accused Products are made in China. See

- Confidential Ex. 53, Credelle Dec...37. MRLED. then sells the Accused Products. for importation _ _ »

into the United States, imports them into the United States, and/or sells them \;\lithin the United
States after importation. See Confidential Ex. 53, Credelle Dec. [ 37-40.
12.  Prismaflex |
179. On information and belief, modular LED displays that infringe thle ’306 patent and
the *782 patent are imported, sold for importation, and/or sold within the Ul;‘lited States after
importation by Respondent Prismaflex. Prismaflex’s Accused Products are maq'\e in China aﬁd/or
France. See Confidential Ex. 53, Credelle Dec. § 41. Prismaflex then sells the zikccused Products
for importation into the United States, imports them into the United States, and/ oni sells them within
the United States after importation. See Confidential Ex. 53; Credelle Dec. 42—44.
13.  Rocketsign |
180.  On information and belief, modular LED displays that infringe til.?ﬂ.’éQ@ patent and
the *782 patent are imported, sold for importation, and/or sold within the U1:1ited S,'lta'tes after
importation by Responden]t Rocketsign. Rocketsign sells 1:hei Accused Product%s for importation
into the United States, imﬁorts them into the United Statc'es, and/or sells them {Within the United
States after importation. See Confidential Ex. 53, Credelle Dec. 1 45-47.
14.  Samsung
181. On information and belief, modular LED displays that infringe thie ’306 patent

and the 782 patent are imported, sold for importation, and/or sold within the United States after

importation by Respondent Samsung. Samsung sells the Accused Products for iﬁnportation into

__the United States, imports them into the United States, and/or sells them within the United States

! '
after importation. See Confidential Ex. 53, Credelle Dec. {{ 48-50. Furthermore, Samsung will
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b:e an exhibitor at Digital Signage Expo 2018 in Las Vegas, Nevada from March 27-30, 2018,
vxlglhere, on information and belief, Samsung will exhibit the Accused Product(s). See
; _C:onﬁdential.Ex..S?:, Credelle Dec. §.49._ _ - .. ___.
. 15. | Sansi |
182. On infgormation and belief, modular LED displays that infringe the *306 patent and
tlile *782 patent are imported, sold for importation, and/or sold within the United States after
ir;nportation by Respondent Sansi. Sansi’s Accused Products are made in China. See Confidential
Ex 53, Credelle Dec: 9§ 51. Sansi then sells the Accused Products for importation into the United
States 1mports them into the United States, and/or sells them within the United States after
iinportation. See Confidential Ex. 53, Credelle Dec. 1 52-53.
| 16.  Unilumin
183.  On information and belief, modular LED displays that infringe the *306 patent and

the *782 patent are imported, sold for importation, and/or sold within the United States after

_i'mp_or,tation by.Respondent Unilumin. Unilumin’s Accused Products are made in China. See

|
i

(i?oriﬁdehtial Ex. 53, Cr'edelle Dec. § 54. Unilumin then sells the Accused Products for importation
iinto the United State?s, imports them into the United States, and/or sells them within the United
Slitates after importati!on. See Confidential Ex. 53, Credelle Dec. f 55-58.
' 17.  Yaham |

184. On information and belief, modular LED displays that infringe the *306 patent and
t?he *782 patent are imported, sold for importation, and/or sold within the United States after
ifmportation by Reslzaondent Yaham. Yaham’s Accused Products are made in China. See

Conﬁdential Ex. 53, Credelle Dec. 9 59. Yaham then sells the Accused Products for importation

mto the United Statcs imports them into the United States, and/or sells them w1th1n the Umted
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B. The Private Label Respondents

1. Formetco

_185.___On information and belief, modular LED displays that infringe the *306 patent and _

the 782 patent are imported, sold for importation, and/or sold within the Uémited States after
importation by Respondent Formetco. On information and belief, Accused Proiducts are made in
China and re-labeled for sale by or on behalf of Formetco. Formetco imports the Accused Products
into the United States and/or sells them within the United States after irinportation. See
Confidential Ex. 53, Credelle Dec. ] 64-65.

2. Leyard

186.  On information and belief, modular LED displays that infringe the *306 patent and
the ’782 patent are imported, sold for importation, and/or sold within th’e Uznited States after
importation by Respondent Leyard. On information and belief, Accused Products are made in
China and re-labeled for sale by or on behalf of Leyard. See Confidential Ex. Sé, Credelle Dec. |
66. Leyard imports the Accused Products into the United States and/or sel_lsi them within the
United States after importation. See Confidential Ex. 53, Credelle Dec. { 67-69.

3. Mitsubishi

187.  On information and belief, modular LED displays that infringe tlfle ’306 patent and
the ’782 patent are imported, sold for importatioﬁ, and/or sold within the UZnited States after
importation by Respondenf Mitsubishi. On information and belief, Accused Proiducts are made in
China and re-labeled for sale by or-on behalf of Mitsuk)iishi'. Mitsubishi imﬁorts the Accused
Products into the United States and/or sells them within the United States after importation. See

Confidential Ex. 53, Credelle Dec. §{ 70-73.



4. ‘NanoLumens [

188. On information and belief, mo|du1ar LED displays that infringe the *306 patent i

' |

_____andthe »782 patent are imported, sold for importation, and/or sold within the United States after !
' ‘ otates atter .

importation by Respondent NanoLumens. Oln information and belief, Accused Products are
i 1
made in China and retlabeled for sale by or on behalf of NanoLumens. NanoLumens imports the

Accused Products intb the United States and/or sells them within the United States after
importation. See Confidential Ex. 53, Credelle Dec. 9§ 74-75.

5. Panasonic

189.  On information and belief, modular LED displays that infringe the 306 patent and

the *782 patent are irnported, sold for importation, and/or sold within the United States after
| | .

importation by Respéndent Panasonic. On information and belief, Accused Products are made in
, !

i i s
China and re-labeled for sale by or on behalf of Panasonic. Panasonic imports the Accused

|

Products into the United States and/or sells them within the United States after importation. See

'. S
Confidential Ex. 53, Credelle Dec. 1.76-78.

6. . ; Vanguard
190. On ingformation and belief, modular LED displays that infringe the *306 patent and

";he ’782 patent are [imported, sold for importation, and/or sold within the United States after
i |

importation by Respbndent Vanguard. On information and belief, Accused Products are made in

bhina and re-labeled for sale by or on behalf of Vanguard. See Confidential Ex. 53, Credelle Dec.
:ﬁ[ 79. Vanguard impiorts the Accused Products into the United States and/or sells them within the
United States after importation. See Confidential Ex. 53, Credelle Dec. ] 80-84. I

C. The Distributor Respondents

1. ANC

191. On ifformation and belief, modular LED displays that infringe the ’306 patent and
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the *782 patent are imported, sold for importation, and/or sold within the United States after

importation by Respondent ANC. ANC imports the Accused Products into the United States

_and/or -sells-them. within.the. United. States_after importation.. .See Confidential LEK- 53, Credelle __|_

Dec. 9 85-86.

2. GoVision

192. On information and belief, modular LED displays that infringe the *306 patent and
the *782 patent are imported, sold for importation, and/or sold within the anited States after

importation by Respondent GoVision. GoVision imports the Accused Products into the United

States and/or sells them within the United States after importation. See Confidential Ex. 53,

Credelle Dec. 1 87-88.

3. RMG

193.  On information and belief, modular LED displays that infringe the *306 patent and
|

the *782 patent are imported, sold for importation, and/or sold within the United States after

importation by Respondent RMG. RMG imports the Accused Products into the United States

and/or sells them within the United States after importation. See Conﬁde_ntiali Ex. 53, Credelle
Dec. 7 89-90.

VII. CLASSIFICATION OF THE ACCUSED PRODUCTS UNDER '
THE HARMONIZED TARIFF SCHEDULE OF THE UNITED STATES

194. On information and belief, the infringing Accused Products may be classified under
at least the following heading and subheading of the Harmonized Tariff Schedule of the United
States (“HTS”): 8541.40.2000. These classifications are intended for illustratioh only and are not

intended to restrict the scope of any exclusion order or other remedy ordered by the Commission.
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IX. THE DOMESTIC INDUSTRY

195. With respect to each of the Asserted Ultravision Patents, a domestic industry, as

_ défined by 19.U.S.C. §§.1337(a)(L)(A)-and_1337(a)(2)-(3), exists, or is in the process of being

eétablished, by virtue| of Ultravision’s significant investment in plant and equipment, significant
efnployment of labor or capital for U.S. activities directed to its Modular LED Displays, and/or its
s151bstantial investment in the exploitatiop of the Asserted Ultravision Patents through activities
SL?lCh as engineering aind research and development in the United States.

A. Technlical Prong (

196. Ultravision practices the Asserted Ultravision Patents in the United States through
Lletravision’s UltraPainel products.

197. Photographs of the UltraPanel products are included with this Complaint in
Exhibits 47 and 48. Pursuant to Commission Rule 210.12(2)(9)(ix), claim charts applying claims
O?.f the Asserted Ultrayision Patents to the UltraPanel products are attached as Exhibits 47 and 48.

. 198. .In ad!dition.,. . Ultravision .continues to. exploit_the inventions in_the _Assél_'_ted
[EJltravision Patents ahd plans to release new versions of Ultravision Products that will practice the
Asserted Ultravision [Patents in the United States.

I B. Econ@mic Prong

199. As required by.19 U.S.C. §§ 1337(a)(2) and 1337(2)(3), an industry exists, or is in
the process of bemg established, in the United States relating to Complainant’s Modular LED

Dlsplays and the AsSerted Ultrav1s1on Patents, which are practlced by Complainant’s Modular

LED Displays. Complainants’ Modular LED Displays sold domestically are designed, developed,

rhanufactured testeél assembled, and supported in the United States. To design, develop,.
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continues to employ significant labor or capital, and has made and continues to imake substantial

investments in the exploitation of the Asserted Ultravision Patents through activities such as

“enginecring aid research and development in the United Statess = -~ - - —- - — == —-- - - - - -

1. Existing Domestic Industry Related to Modular LED Displays
200. On the basis of Ultravision’s domestic research and development, engineering,
testing, and product support, a domestic industry related to products that practice the Asserted
Ultravision Patents currently exists.

a) Ultravision’s Domestic Activities Related to
Modular LED Displays ;

201. Ultravision’s domestic activities related to Modular LED Displays are set forth in
Confidential Ex. 55.

b) Significant Investment in Plant and|
Equipment

202. Complainant’s investments in its facilities, including plant space, rent, taxes,

insurance,- utilities, repair, and maintenance, for conducting activities related to the Ultravision '

Products protected by the Asserted Ultravision Patents are set forth in Conﬁden'fcial Ex. 55.

203. Additionally, Complainant uses various equipment, tools, and so:ftware in
connection with its activities involving the Ultravision Products protected by thje Asserted
Ultravision Patents. Complainant’s investments in the United States in equipment, tooling, and
software utilized for activities related to the Ultravision Products protected by the Asserted
Ultravision Patents are set forth in Confidential Ex. 55.

c) Significant Employment of Labor ofr Capital

204. Confidential Ex. 55 details Complainant’s'employment of labor in the United
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Ultravision Patents and sets forth Complainant’s expenditures for its employees’ salaries and
benefits.

- - === === -i==- 905 .~ - Further; Confidential Ex. 55-details Complainant’s employment of capital in the

United States in connection with activities directed to the Ultravision Products protected by the |
Asserted Ultravision Patents.

d) Substantial Investment in Exploitation of
Agserted Patents Through Engineering and
Research and Development ,

206. Confidential Ex. 55 details Complainant’s substantial U.S. investments in

| . |
engineering and research and development to exploit the Asserted Ultravision Patents, and
| | . X
details Complainant’s plans to continue to invest significantly in these activities to exploit the |

I:Axsserted Ultravision! Patents through new generations of Ultravision Products protected by the | .
liksserted Ultravision Patents. g
i 207. Accordingly, Complainant’s investments in the United States in activities directed
’ :f"()" tlie Ultravision Préoducts protected by the Asserted Ultravision Patents, as described above and
:in Confidential Ex.’55, demonstrate the existence of a domestic industry s defined in Section

§337(a)(1)(A) and (2)(3).

5. ' TUltravision’s Domestic Industry
in the Process of Being Established

208. In 2017, Ultravision made the decision to move manufacturing of the Ultravision
‘UltraPanel products to the Uni‘;ed States. Ultravision’s activities and investments to on-shore its
. manufacturing acti\i/ities are set forth in Confidential Ex. 54. To the extent that Ultravision’s past
investments relateci to the UltraPanel products are insufficient to demonstrate the existence of a

. domestic industry, Ultravision’s planned expenditures related to its domestic manufacturing
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Ultravision Patents is in the process of being established. Ultravision, through its domestic
contract manufacturer, will make a significant investment in plant and equipment, will employ

~ ~ significarnit labot” or capital; and/or-will ‘make substantial -investments- in-the -exploitation- of-the--— - — - - ..

Asserted Ultravision Patents through engineering and research and development. Moreover,

Ultravision expects to make a significant investment in plant and equipment and employ

significant labor or capital to allow Ultravision to manufacture the UltraPanel products at its
|

existing Dallas Facility. Ultravision’s past and future activities and invesﬁnents constitute

necessary and tangible steps to establish a domestic industry in the United States.| See Confidential
i

Ex. 55. |
209. As explained in Confidential Exhibit 54, Ultravision anticipatesi that its domestic
contract manufacturing will be producing UltraPanel products in the United Stafltes by the end of

the second quarter of 2018. Ultravision expects it will be manufacturing all or ivirtually all of its

| '.
UltraPanel products in the United States by the end of 2018. Ultravision’s expected domestic

investment for the domestic manufacturing of the UltraPanel products is set forl‘th. in- Confidential
L S ;

Exhibit 55. ‘
X. GENERAL EXCLUSION ORDER

210.  Should the ITC find a violation of Section 337, a general exclusion order (“GEO”)

directed to certain LED displays that infringe one or more claims of the Ass:erted Ultravision

Patents is necessary and appropriate to prevent circumvention of an LEO directed to Respondents

and/or to remedy a pattern of violation of Section 337 where it is difficult to idexfltify the source of
Accused Products. 19 U.S.C. § 1337(d)(2).

211. The facts as alleged in this Complaint and likely to be revealed ’éhrough discovery

" ~demonstrate; with respect to-modular LED-displays,-several grounds- for the issuance of a GEO, - i-.

such as: high demand for modular LED displays in the United States, a quickly-established and '
68 ! % |
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growing market in the United States, a large and established distribution system in the United

States, interchangeability of foreign manufacturers, large foreign manufacturing capacity, and a

I "'propensuy and- ability-of foreign- suppliers to- change- company-names and_carporate forms inan __ ______ | ..
ajctempt to evade enforcement efforts. Representative public information relevant to these facts is
described in more detail below.

A. Char4acteristics of the U.S. Market for
Accused Products Weigh in Favor of a GEO !

212. Therejexists high demand and a well-established and extensive distribution system

or modular LED di:splays in the United States. That distribution system includes direct-to-
céonsumer sales by the Manufacturing Respondents, as well as other manufacturers, U.S. based
(Eiistributors that provide custom LED solutions, and extensive Internet-based sales and distribution
r:ietworks. See Sectibn I, supra. One indicator of the high demand for modular LED displays is

| .

the large number of Respondents selling and promoting Accused Products. See Section VII, supra.
i |
On 1nformat10n and behef there are currently dozens, if not hundreds, of companies in the United

States that 1mport warehouse, distribute, and/or sell modular LED displays that 1nfr1nge one or b
i T
more claims of the Asserted Ultravision Patents. Indeed, infringement of the Asserted Ultravision
: i
Patents and the conduct of unfair acts in connection with the advertising and sale of modular LED '

| l
displays continues to grow. P
| l

j 213.  For example, at InfoComm 2017, Complainant identified more than 32 companies l
| ‘ (]
promoting and selling LED panels that, on information and belief, violate Section 337. On L

|

iinformation and belief, the LED panels purported to be manufactured outside the United States, l:
|
|

Emostly in China. E)ihibitors at the show were present in Orlando for only a few days, during which

|
'tlme on 1nformat10n and belief, they took orders for LED panels that are the subject of one or %
l

lmore unfair acts, mcludmg, but not 11m1ted to, mfrmgement of the Asserted Ultravision Patents,



many of which will be bound for the United States. Exhibits 46-47 are the brc?chures for LED

panels that Ultravision obtained at the 2017 InfoComm Trade Show, which show representative

~images of the LED panels and-were being promoted at different exhibitors’ booths throughoutthe |

InfoComm 2017.

B. There Are Many Sources of Accused Products

914. On information and belief, manufacturers of modular LED disblays are largely
interchangeable, and many manufacturers appear to supply multiple distributoris, retailers, or re-
sellers. For example, the modular LED displays offered for sale and sold by.Resplondent Vanguard
appear identical to those offered for sale and sold by Respondent Rocketsigril. Compare e.g.,
Ex. 48, with Ex. 49. :
215. Moreover, in late 2017 and early 20138, Ultravision received at le%st three offers for

|
sale of new LED products that, on information and belief, also infringe the Asferted Ultravision

Patents. Specifically, a representative from a Chinese manufacturer, Shenzhen Liantronics Co.,
|

--Ltd ; emailed Mr. Hall, the inventor of the Asserted Ultravision Patents, to offcr updated Accused

Products. See Ex. 50. Likewise, another Chinese manufacturer, Shenzhen Mary Photoelectricity
1 )

Co., Ltd. d/b/a MRLED contacted Mr. Hall offering to seil him new products tl‘%at, on information
and belief, also infringe the Asserted Ultravision Patents. See Ex. 51. In that 5correspondence, a
representative of MRLED confirms the existence of a U.S. branch office, an(i? that the products
being offered for sale in the United States are now available from inventory he,j'ld in Los Angeles.
Finally, Chinese manufacturer Liantronics emailed Mr. Hall introducing its neé:wly-launched VA

P I
series that, on information and belief, also infringes the Asserted Ultravision P;atents. See Ex. 52.

Just as with MRLED, many foreign manufacturers of Accused Products are, on information and

- belief, keeping Accused-Products.in inventory.in the United States to facilitate faster sales and

shipping to U.S. based customers.
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216. Finally, the nature of these products, and the small number of components

necessary for manufdcturing, lend themselves to numerous foreign manufacturers being able to

- -q;uickl-y -and- cheaply-retool -their- factories-to .begin manufacturing new_infringing modular LED

dﬁsplays. The products themselves are easily reverse engineered, and tooling and componentry
|

costs for these products are relatively low, particularly as compared to the value of the products
once they are integrated into custom LED solutions. Further, the components are not overly

technical, and likely ¢an be sourced as off the shelf components from numerous suppliers in China
| | :

a:nd elsewhere. Thus, any LED or component manufacturer could quickly reconfigure and retool
an existing manufacthring line to begin manufacturing new infringing panels.

C. Identifying the Source of Accused Products is Difficult
217. Due tb the number of manufacturers, suppliers, importers, distributors, consignees,
sellers and re-sellers, warehouses, and other entities involved in the sale and importation of
|

|

| ;
Accused Products, 113| is difficult to determine the source of imported LED panels. Many foreign

4

rjnanufacturers and scfalle-rs-- of LED- panels appear to do. business under multiple names, corporate

forms, and/or websites, and through different subsidiaries, importers, or distributors, impott

modular LED displdys into the United States. See, e.g., supra 9 12-14, 128, 133. In addition,

| \

many comparies offer modular LED displays for sale and importation into the United States on
‘fche' Internet. Many icompanies avail themselves of the ease of listing products for sale through
’;cheir own websites. |

218. The ii’nposition of a GEO is therefore necessary due to the conditions of the market,
the number of poten;tial known and unknown infringers, and the potential for circumvention of an

I
|
,
)

LEO.



XI. REQUESTED RELIEF
WHEREFORE, by reason of the foregoing, Ultravision respectfully requests that the

- —— United-States International Trade Commission: - __. . _____ ..

A. Institute an immediate investigation pursuant to Section 337(b)(1)i of the Tariff Act
of 1930, as amended, 19 U.S.C. § 1337, into the violation of Section 337 baseid on the sale for
importation into the United States, importation, and/or sale or lease within the U;nited States after |

importation of Respondents’ Accused Products that infringe one or more claims of the Asserted

Ultravision Patents;
B. Schedule and condu;:t a hearing pursuant to Section 337(0),‘; for purposes of .
receiving evidence and hearing argument concerning whether there has been a violation of Section
337, and following the hearing, to determine that there has been a violation of Siection 337;
C. Issue a permanent general exclusion order forbidding entry into|the United States
of the Accused Products that infringe any claim of the Asserted Ultravision Paténts;
D: - -Alternatively; issue-a permanent limited exclusion order fq_rbidc;li_ng entry into the |
United Statés of Modﬁlar LED Dispiays impofted, sold for importation, or 'solc;i after importation |
by Respondents that infringe the Asserted Ultravision Patents; |
E. Issue a permanent cease and desist order, pursuant to Sectioﬁ 337(f), directing
Respondents to cease and desist from the importation, salle, offer for sale, marl%eting, advertising,
packaging, inventorying, distribution, transfer, or solicitation of any sale bly Respondents of |
Modular LED Displays that infringe the Asserted Ultravision Patents;
F. Impose a bond, pursuant to 19 U.S.C. §§ 1337(e), (), upon Propiosed Respondents’
importation of the Accused Products that infringe any claim of the Asserted Ultravision Patents .
- during the 60-day Presidential review -period. to.prevent. further injury to Ultravision’s domestic |

industry relating to the Asserted Ultravision Patents;
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G.

Award Ultravision its attorneys’ fees in connection with bringing this action to

r;bmedy Proposed Reépondents’ unfair acts in violation of Section 337; and

! __H.- - Grantiall such other and further relief as it deems appropriate under the law, based

upon the facts complained of herein and as determined by the investigation.

Dated: March 27, 2018

Respectfully submitted,

Voiz-

V. James Adduci
Jonathan J. Engler
Asha Allam

Joshua W. Rodriguez

ADDUCI, MASTRIANI & SCHAUMBERG, L.L.P.

‘1133 Connecticut Avenue, N.W., 12th Floor
Washington, DC 20036

Tel.: (202) 467-6300

Fax: (202) 466-2006

Alfred R. Fabricant

Peter Lambrianakos

Vincent J. Rubino, III
Joseph M. Mercadante
Alessandra Messing
BROWN RUDNICK LLP

7 Times Square

New York, New York 10036
Tel: (212) 209-4800

Fax: (212) 209-4801

Counsel for Complainant Ultravision
Technologies, LLC
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VERIFICATION OF COMPLAINT

[, William Hall, declare, in accordance with 19 C.F.R. §§ 210.4 and 210.12(a), under

1. I am the Chief Executive Officer of Ultravision Technologies, LLC, and am duly

e e e e e e e e e e e miee e me = e e = e e e em e e T e ———

" penalty of perjury that the following statements are true:

authorized to sign this complaint on behalf of Complainant;

2. [ have read the complaint and am aware of its contents;

3. The complaint is not being presented for any improper purpose, such as to harass

or to cause unnecessary delay or needless increase in the cost of litigation;

4. To the best of my knowledge, information, and belief founded upon reasonable

inquiry, the claims and legal contentions of this complaint are warranted by existing law or a

good faith argument for the extension, modification, or reversal of existing law; and

5. The allegations and other factual contentions in the complaint have evidentiary

support or are likely to have evidentiary support after a reasonable opportunity for further

investigation or discovery.

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the United States of Anierica that the

foregoing is true and correct.

Executed on 27, March, 2018

DMM(/

Print N {am Hall

T1tle utive Officer .

Ultravision T chnologies, LL.C
/



